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Board of Supervisors
Storey Park Community
Development District

Dear Board Members:

The meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Storey Park Community Development District will
be held Thursday, June 24, 2021 at 4:00 PM at the offices of GMS-CF, 219 E. Livingston Street,
Orlando, Florida. A separate call-in number was e-mailed directly for Board and Staff use.

Call-in Information for Members of the Public:

Dial-in Number: (267) 930-4000
Participant Code: 876-571

Following is the advance agenda for the meeting:

Roll Call
Public Comment Period
Approval of Minutes of the April 22, 2021 Meeting
Consideration of Resolution 2021-15 Finalizing the Series 2021 Assessments
Consideration of Resolution 2021-16 Authorizing and Confirming and Re-Authorizing
and Re-Confirming the Assessment Area Four Project; Equalizing, Approving and
Levying Special Assessments
6. Consideration of Resolution 2021-17 Amending Resolution 2021-14 Approving the
Proposed Budget for the Fiscal Year 2022 and Setting a Public Hearing
7. Ratification of Series 2019 Requisition #4 and Consideration of Series 2019 Requisition
#5
8. Ratification of Temporary Access Easement Agreement with Aaron and Joy Humphrey
9. Consideration of Proposal from Fausight Stripe and Line for Installation of ‘No Parking’
Signs
10. Staff Reports
A. Attorney
B. Engineer
C. District Manager’s Report
i.  Approval of Check Register
ii. = Balance Sheet and Income Statement
ili.  Presentation of Number of Registered Voters - 1,596
11. Supervisor’s Requests
12. Adjournment
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The second order of business is the Public Comment Period where the public has an
opportunity to be heard on propositions coming before the Board as reflected on the agenda,
and any other items.

The third order of business is the approval of the minutes of the April 22, 2021 meeting. The
minutes are enclosed for your review.

The fourth order of business is the consideration of Resolution 2021-15 finalizing the Series 2021
assessments (Assessment Area Four). A copy of the Resolution is enclosed for your review.

The fifth order of business is consideration of Resolution 2021-16 authorizing and confirming
and re-authorizing and re-confirming the Assessment Area Four project, equalizing, approving
and levying special assessments. A copy of the Resolution is enclosed for your review,

The sixth order of business is the consideration of Resolution 2021-17 amending resolution 2021-
14 approving the proposed Fiscal Year 2022 budget and setting a public hearing. A copy of the
Resolution is enclosed for your review.

The seventh order of business is the ratification of the Series 2019 requisition #4 and
consideration of the Series 2019 requisition #5. The requisitions and supporting invoices are
enclosed for your review.

The eighth order of business is the ratification of the temporary access easement agreement with
Aaron and Joy Humphrey. A copy of the agreement is enclosed for your review.

The ninth order of business is the consideration of proposal from Fausnight Stripe and Line to
install ‘No Parking” signs. A copy of the proposal is enclosed for your review.

The tenth order of business is Staff Reports. Section C is the District Manager’s Report. Sub-
Section 1 includes the check register being submitted for approval and Sub-Section 2 includes
the balance sheet and income statement for your review. Sub-Section 3 is the presentation of the

number of registered voters within the boundaries of the District.

The balance of the agenda will be discussed at the meeting. In the meantime, if you should
have any questions, please contact me.

Sincerely,
Frtciar Adbams

Tricia Adams
District Manager

CC:  Jan Carpenter, District Counsel
Christina Baxter, District Engineer

Enclosures
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MINUTES OF MEETING
STOREY PARK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Storey Park Community
Development District was held on Thursday, April 22, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. at the Offices of GMS-

CF, LLC, 219 E. Livingston Street, Orlando, Florida.

Present and constituting a quorum were:

Rob Bonin Chairman

Ben Kraljev Assistant Secretary
Andrew Ashby Assistant Secretary
Susan Kane Assistant Secretary

Also present were:

Tricia Adams GMS
Kristen Trucco Latham, Luna, Eden & Beaudine, LLP
Christina Baxter (by phone) Engineer
Alan Scheerer Field Manager
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call

Ms. Adams called the meeting to order and called the roll. A quorum was present.

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comment Period

Ms. Adams: Callers have three minutes to make a statement to the Board of Supervisors.
Please state your first and last name and your address for the record. We would appreciate that.
If there are any callers who would like to make a public comment, we can take those now.

Mr. Antonio Iskandar, (History Avenue): I have a question. If the answer is affirmative,
then there will be another question. We have been paying a lot of attention to the construction of
a park in front of our houses on History Avenue. There was some effort last week after several
months of waiting for that. So, I’'m wondering whether it is under your jurisdiction of the CDD.
If that is the case, do you have any information regarding what the next steps are. There have
been drainage issues. We are concerned about the impact of that when the rainy season starts
and there is also the possibility that kids are playing on that piece of land that is supposed to be a

park. So that is my comment and question.
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Ms. Adams: Thank you, Antonio. Throughout the meeting today, much of the
information you are inquiring about will be discussed. If it is not addressed during the meeting,
staff will follow up with you outside of this meeting regarding your concerns.

Mr. Iskandar: Thank you.’

Ms. Adams: Is there anyone else who would like to make a comment?

Ms. Lissette Beltran, (Imaginary Way): 1 want to thank Tricia. She has been a major
help and I love that. I was wondering if the Board could follow up on the conversation for issues
that are not addressed frequently. A dog station needs to be repaired. I appreciate you working
hard on resolving the issues with the ATVs. I just want to go a step above and beyond. I was
wondering what else we can do together to stop people from violating the law with their dirt
bikes and ATV, especially children. Also, Lennar owns the two parcels next to the school. The
majority of the dirt bikes and ATVs are coming through one of the parcels. I need the CDD to
help me, nothing fancy, just keep expenses thin so you can hire police enforcement to monitor
those parcels and install signage. That will help a lot. We need to repave on Story Time Drive

and Imaginary Way. So, I need signs and my asphalt to be repaved. Thank you. I appreciate

your help.

Ms. Adams: Thank you, Lissette. Are there any other public comments? Hearing none,
thank you so much.
THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Minutes of the March 25,

2021 Meeting
Ms. Adams: Are there any corrections? If not, we need a motion to approve the minutes.

On MOTION by Mr. Kraljev seconded by Mr. Ashby with all in
favor the Minutes of the March 25, 2021 Meeting were approved
as presented.

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financing Matters
Ms. Adams: We have an assessment hearing scheduled for today. This is the 2021 bond

for Assessment Area 4. This has been duly published and noticed for this meeting date. We

need a motion to open the assessment hearing.

On MOTION by Mr. Kraljev seconded by Ms. Kane with all in
favor the public hearing for Assessment Area 4 was opened.
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A. Consideration of Engineer’s Report
Ms. Adams: Ms. Baxter is on the phone to discuss the Engineer’s Report that was

included in the electronic agenda package. There have been no substantive changes since the
Board previously reviewed this Engineer’s Report.

Ms. Baxter: Good evening everyone, the Engineer’s Report includes the addition of
Parcel K, Phases 1 and 2, what we call Areas 10 and 11, which make up Assessment Area 4.
The Engineer’s Report includes infrastructure, roads, utilities, stormwater elements that are part
of Assessment Area 4 as well as the engineer’s opinion of costs and the unit distribution. Those
all correlate to the Assessment Methodology and other documents that are also presented today.
If there are any specific questions on the Engineer’s Report, I would be happy to answer those.

Mr. Kraljev: No.

Ms. Kane: No.

Ms. Adams: Thank you, Christy.

B. Consideration of Master Assessment Methodology for Assessment Area Four
Ms. Adams: Included in the agenda package is a copy of the Master Assessment

Methodology Report for Assessment Area 4. There is also a Supplemental Assessment
Methodology that is tied into the anticipated terms for the bond issuance. There will be another
one that is tied into the actual terms of the bonds. There were no substantive changes to the
Assessment Methodology from the version the Board reviewed previously. For the record, the
tables included in the Assessment Methodology are on Pages 10 through 15. Table 1 identifies
the Master Assessment Methodology for Assessment Area 4, including the total number of units,
which is 357 units and Equivalent Residential Units (ERUs), which is 281. Table 2 is the Capital
Improvement Plan, which is tied into the Engineer’s Report that you just reviewed. It defines the
eligible improvements. Table 3 identifies additional costs associated with the bond issuance.
Table 4 is the allocation of improvement costs per the different product types; townhomes and
the four different single-family home options. Table 5 is an allocation of par debt to each
product type. Again, this is your Master Assessment Methodology, which is going to be fine-
tuned in your Supplemental Assessment Methodology. Table 6 shows the par debt and annual
assessment for each product type per unit. There is also a Preliminary Assessment Roll,
identifying the property ID that would be associated with the Master Assessment Methodology

and the Assessment Roll. Are there any questions? Hearing none,
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C. Public Comment and Testimony
Ms. Adams: We will now open the assessment hearing for public comment. Are there

any callers on the line who would like to make a comment regarding Assessment Area 4?2 For
the current residents of Storey Park, I will let you know that this does not have an impact on you.
This is for newer phases of development that are coming on, but you are more than welcome, if
you have a comment regarding the assessment hearing, to provide comments.

Ms. Beltran: I would like for the District to improve the crosswalk.

Ms. Adams: That is not part of the assessment hearing. This is tied into the bond
issuance or the capital improvement spending. It is not regarding any improvements on Dowden
Road.

Ms. Trucco: This is for a future phase, known as Parcel K or Assessment Area 4 only.

Ms. Lissette Beltran: Will there be crosswalks in the new parcels?

Mr. Scheerer: There are crosswalks in the community.

Ms. Adams: I don’t know if any crosswalks are designed Parcels, K-1 and K-2, but I can
coordinate with the District Engineer and get back to you.

Ms. Beltran: Thank you.

Ms. Baxter: Crosswalks are in the Engineering Plan permitted through the City of
Orlando as required by DOT and the City Code.

Ms. Adams: Thank you, Christy. Are there any other public comments regarding the
Engineer’s Report, Master Assessment Methodology or anything related to the assessment

hearing? Hearing none,

C. Consideration of Resolution 2021-13 Levying Assessments
Ms. Adams: This resolution covers several important areas. Kristen, would you like to

present the resolution?

Ms. Trucco: Sure. This resolution approves the levy of assessments in Assessment Area
4, also known as Parcel K that was recently annexed into the District by the county. These
assessments will pay for the construction of the Assessment Area 4 project in accordance with
the Assessment Methodology Report that is in the agenda as well as the District Engineer’s
Report. If you have any questions, we can try to answer them now. Otherwise, we are just

looking for a motion to adopt this resolution so we can proceed with the bond issuance.
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On MOTION by Ms. Kane seconded by Mr. Kraljev with all in
favor Resolution 2021-13 Authorizing and Confirming the
Assessment Area 4 Project; Equalizing, Approving and Levying
Special Assessments on Property Specially Benefitted by Such
Assessment Area 4 Project to Pay the Costs Thereof; Providing for
the Payment and the Collection of Such Special Assessments by the
Method Provided for by Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida
Statutes; Confirming the District’s Intention to Issue Special
Assessment Revenue Bonds; Making Provisions for Transfers of
Real Property to Governmental Bodies; Providing for Recording of]
an Assessment Notice; and Providing for Severability, Conflicts and
an Effective Date was adopted.

Ms. Adams: We need a motion to close the assessment hearing.

On MOTION by Ms. Kane seconded by Mr. Kraljev with all in
favor the public hearing was closed.

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2021-14
Approving the Proposed Fiscal Year 2022

Budget and Setting a Public Hearing
Ms. Adams: Included in your agenda package is a draft of the Proposed Budget. This is

your first look at the budget. As far as timing, if the Board has enough information to move
forward with approving the resolution today, we can move forward with the budget hearing for
final adoption in July. This might be a little earlier than what you have done in the past.
Alternatively, if the Board needs more time to look at the draft budget and sharpen our pencils in
any way, the resolution could be adopted by the Board at your May meeting and have the budget
adoption in August. There is no pressure with this first look at the budget if the Board has any
questions, because it proposes a fairly significant increase. Going through the budget for the
Storey Park CDD, Page 1 has an overview of your General Fund. It shows adopted budget
revenues of $772,838 for the current fiscal year. Whereas for next year, the proposed revenues
are $1.1 Million. So, there is an increase with the revenue and with spending. In going through
your Administrative expenses, most of the increases are tied to the costs of the new bond
issuance. There was an increase in Trustee Fees, Arbitrage and Dissemination Agent, due to the
number of bond issuances that we have.

Mr. Rob Bonin joined the meeting.
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Ms. Adams: For Field expenses, there were some additional increases. There is a
significant increase in the Landscape Maintenance — Contract, based on areas that will be
maintained by OmegaScapes.

Mr. Scheerer: Parcel K.

Ms. Adams: Yes. I believe it was within the last year or less that this District bid out
Landscaping Services. By far, that is most significant cost in your field expenses. There were
some savings to the District by bidding it out, but it is a big part of the budget, which is proposed
at $430,160. We also have a significant expense increase in Streetlights. You are currently
budgeted at $160,000, but with the additional streetlights, your proposed budget for Fiscal Year
2022 is $241,000. Those are the two biggest increases. We added some funding for Pressure
Washing. Under Repairs & Maintenance, there is a line item for Enhanced Traffic Enforcement.
As the Board is aware, traffic calming and deterring the use of illegal vehicles is a significant
priority for residents in this District. The District owns the roads, so they are public roads.
Traffic enforcement is the responsibility of the Orlando Police Department. They have been
doing routine patrols and responding to calls. What we are proposing is enhanced traffic
enforcement three days per week in four-hour shifts. If the Board wants to approve that expense,
the annual amount would be $39,500. That would be a new item. Another significant expense is
Capital Outlay. The way that we set up this budget, there is detail for Capital Outlay on Page 12.
We received some feedback regarding the installation of fencing where Satire Street terminates
to the undeveloped area and around the retention pond. The developer installed split rail fencing
up to the bike path. The District solicitated for proposals to continue that fencing. Right now, the
Operations Manager is identifying that area. Ben knows exactly where we are talking about. It’s
an expensive item and a discretionary item. The fence and painting would be about 1,800 linear
feet and the expense would be around $52,000. We are proposing that as a one-time capital
outlay. Other items in your Capital Outlay including No Parking signage, which is needed for
some of the areas that are currently developed. We considered additional traffic calming
measures such as a radar display, which was $26,000. Ultimately we pulled that out believing
that the most effective traffic calming was the dynamic presence of police in the community.
That will provide more traffic calming than self-monitoring devices. So, we pulled out the radar
display and additional painting of speed limit signage or speed limit markings on the roads.

With the proposed increase in the budget, which we will walk through, a mailed notice is
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required identifying the date that the budget will be adopted. The amount in the notice is a cap
amount. You can ultimately adopt a budget that is under that proposed amount, but you can’t go
over that amount once it’s noticed. We are trying to balance it. We want to make sure that the
items are covered, but at the same time if we want to sharpen our pencils and reduce the
proposed increase, we have an opportunity to do so. Ultimately, the Capital Outlay, can be
designated as a Capital Reserve Fund. So, it’s probably a good idea to start identifying these
capital expenses and get the residents accustomed to having money designated for capital
because it will be helpful for the community down the road.

Ms. Trucco: This resolution approves a public hearing on this budget for July. Members
of the public can provide any feedback.

Ms. Adams: Board Members, I’'m not sure how much time you spent reviewing the
budget, but I want to draw your attention to Page 5. The table on the bottom should say,
“Summary of Proposed Increase.” The first set of numbers is the per unit proposed increase.
For example, the current operation and maintenance (O&M) for the townhomes is $272. With
this Proposed Budget, it would be $340 or an increase of $68 per unit. You can see the increase
for the different product types. I will also note that the landscape, streetlights and stormwater
were anticipated expenses for all of Assessment Areas 4 and 5. Not all of those expenses will be
realized the entire fiscal year.

Mr. Bonin: For Capital Qutlay, was depreciation taken into account?

Ms. Adams: O&M is classified as an expense to maintain what’s there, whereas Capital
Outlay would be one-time expenses or capital purchases.

Mr. Bonin: You don’t know how depreciation is handled?

Ms. Adams: I can find out for you.

Ms. Trucco: Good question.

Mr. Bonin: I would like to say that GMS has done a good job identifying the hot topics
and providing proposed solutions. Then there is a question to what extent the community will
accept the expense associated with it.

Ms. Adams: Correct. In your resolution, we are proposing July 22, 2021 as the public
hearing. We are anticipating with the mailed notice, we will generate interest from residents
who want to attend the meeting. This room is not an appropriate location for that. We reached

out to the Innovation School in nearby Storey Park to see if we can hold the public hearing there.
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We have not yet received confirmation. In the past, when we looked into meeting at Innovation
School, they require a later meeting time, 5:00 p.m. or 6:00 p.m. because of their school day.
We don’t know if that will be case on July 22. The Recording Secretary reached out to them
three times and has not heard back. The notice is likely to have the meeting location of
Innovation School and the meeting may be scheduled later that day. So, I wanted to get
feedback from the Board.

Mr. Bonin: T think we heard enough from the community about meeting during business
hours. So, I am personally fine with having the public hearing after hours so we have more
participation.

Ms. Kane: I’'m fine with that.

Ms. Adams: That’s good, because that gives us flexibility with the school if they are
restricted about not starting the meeting at 4:00 p.m. If there is no further discussion and the
Board is comfortable with capping the assessment at the proposed amount, it would be
appropriate to make a motion to approve Resolution 2021-14. At the budget hearing, if the Board
wanted to reduce the O&M expenses, you have an opportunity to do so.

Mr. Bonin: Is what is proposed appropriate and paying the big-ticket items over a two-
year period. I suspect that we won’t have a significant increase, so do you want to approve the
full amount or pare it down?

Ms. Adams: No. I think you encapsulated the issues and concerns. If you assess a higher
amount, it will generate more interest. If there’s an intention to cut back on that, then why not do
that before the notice goes out versus cutting it at the budget hearing. So, if there are some
discretionary expenses that the Board would like to see cut from the budget, this is an
opportunity to do so. Alternatively, if you want to get resident participation, feedback and
additional comments at the budget hearing, there is an opportunity to do so. It is actually a
policy issue based on the Board’s comfort level.

Mr. Bonin: What happens at the next two meetings? Is there anything to discuss budget-
wise?

Ms. Adams: That’s up to the Board. If the Board would like to look at the budget at each
meeting, they have an opportunity to do so. No action is required by the Board at this point and
[’m not anticipating many items on your May agenda, as we are taking care of some very

important matters today with the budget and your assessment hearing.
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Ms. Trucco: The public would have an opportunity to call in during the public comment
period at the beginning of the meeting to voice their concerns about the budget before and at the
budget hearing. If the Board would like to discuss the budget at upcoming meetings, that’s
completely at the pleasure of the Board.

Mr. Kraljev: I think everything we have in front of us is appropriate. We still have time
to get feedback and have workshops to discuss the budget between now and July to change or
tweak anything if that’s what we see fit.

Ms. Adams: I think you inferred that you were asking for feedback from District
Management Staff. I don’t know if there is going to be a substantive difference in the response if
it is a 22% or 23% or 24% increase.

Mr. Ashby: My problem is with the traffic calming, paying the police to come in more.
It would be more effective, but the other thing to think about is a potentially permanent expense
annually from now on versus having additional signage or sensors that you pay for one-time.
There’s minimal maintenance from then on. The concern that I would have is the ongoing
expense of it.

Ms. Kane: It is just for one year, correct? So, in 12 months, we could discuss this again.
The presence of police may have an impact or just an initial shock.

Ms. Adams: Andrew, that is a good point that some of the items are one-time expenses
and they would receive benefit for multiple years, whereas the police presence, you have to
determine how long that is for. Many Districts that budget enhanced traffic enforcement, has
this as an annual appropriation. Right now, we have a situation where there’s been a greater
need for traffic enforcement. In the future, there may be more or less need. We just don’t know.
Is there any further discussion? Otherwise, is the Board ready to approve Resolution 2021-14
and we will fine tune the hour and location for the public hearing, but schedule it for the July 22,
2021 meeting?

Mr. Kraljev temporarily left the meeting.

On MOTION by Ms. Kane seconded by Mr. Ashby with all in
favor Resolution 2021-14 Approving the Proposed Fiscal Year
2019 Budget and Setting a Public Hearing for July 22, 2020,
subject to verifying the time and location was adopted. (Motion
Passed 3-0)
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SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Proposal from Fausnight
Stripe & Line for Installation of No
Parking Signs

Ms. Adams: As the Board is aware, newer phases of the community have been
developed including Phase I-5. There were quite a few situations where we nieeded to put in No
Parking signs so we can enforce the No Parking zones and bring some order into that area to
encourage the free flow traffic. This will impact your current budget, as the budget will be over
expenses in signage because of these 49 No Parking signs. The signage is required per Statute in
order for the District to be able to engage towing enforcement and in accordance with the
engineering No Parking plans that were approved by the City of Orlando. So, if there are no

further questions or discussion, we need a motion to ratify the proposal.

On MOTION by Ms. Kane seconded by Mr. Ashby with all in
favor the proposal from Fausnight Stripe & Line for 49 No Parking
Signs for Phase I-5 in the amount of $8,844.50 was ratified.
(Motion Passed 3-0)

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports
A. Attorney
Ms. Trucco: We have nothing to report to the Board, today.

B. Engineer
Ms. Adams: Christy, do you have anything further to report to the Board?

Ms. Baxter: I don’t have anything further. Thank you.

C. District Manager’s Report
i Approval of Check Register
Ms. Adams: You have the Check Register from March 18, 2021 through April 15, 2021

in the amount of $57,906.35. The detail is behind the summary. I would be happy to answer any

questions. Otherwise, we would be seeking a motion to approve it.

On MOTION by Mr. Ashby seconded by Ms. Kane with all in
favor the March 18, 2021 through April 15, 2021 Check Run
Summary in the amount of $57,906.35 was approved. (Motion
Passed 3-0)

ii. Balance Sheet and Income Statement

10
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Ms. Adams: You also have the Unaudited Financials through March 31, 2021. It
includes the Balance Sheet and Income Statement as well as the spending per date for your
General Fund. It also has information regarding your Debt Service Funds and associated capital

projects. Are there any questions? No Board action is required. It was provided for informational

purposes.

o Traffic Enforcement (Added)
I want to bring up a couple of items. One item that we have been keeping the Board

informed about is traffic calming. Since the last meeting, there have been 32 traffic stops. The
Orlando Police Department has been responsive to requests and situations as well as routine
patrols. We are very happy with their response and want to commend them for their presence in
the community. We also want to bring to the Board’s attention that there is a silt fence that we
would like to remove. The silt fence was installed by the HOA with the hopes that it would deter
dirt bikes from crossing Wewahootee Road into the bike and pedestrian paths. The HOA no
longer maintains that fence and it is often on the ground. It is a maintenance challenge. It is also
not aesthetically pleasing. It was installed with the concept of deterring dirt bikes, but it’s not
doing that, so it’s a maintenance and aesthetic issue.

Mr. Bonin: What is the path of the dirt bikes? Where do they start and where do they try
to get to?

Ms. Adams: Some originate in the community.

Mr. Bonin: What was the fence trying to keep out?

Mr. Scheerer: Wewahootee Road runs into Moss Park in both directions. People are
riding their dirt bikes there and the undeveloped portion of Storey Park Boulevard from Story
Time Drive east. That is another area. We have a retention pond. They were accessing the
asphalt bike trail from Wewahootee Road, so, the HOA installed this silt fence in the hopes of
deterring them from going up there, but it’s on the ground.

Mr. Bonin: Is the silt fence between the curb, asphalt and the trail?

Mr. Scheerer: It’s right on the edge of the asphalt trail.

Mr. Bonin: On the street side?

Mr. Scheerer: Yes.

Mr. Bonin: How wide is the asphalt trail?

Mr. Scheerer: It is probably 6 feet wide.

11
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Mr. Bonin: Are they driving their motorcycles on that trail?

Mr. Scheerer: From time to time, they have been, which is why the request from the
residents was to add a split rail fence and continue that to the aluminum pedestrian bridge.

Mr. Ashby: Which side of the trail is this fence on?

Mr. Scheerer: On the Wewahootee side.

Mr. Ashby: Is there a gate?

Mr. Scheerer: No, there is no gate.

Mr. Ashby: If this is the trail and the fence is here, at some point the fence crosses over
it.

Mr. Scheerer: No, it does not. The trail goes all the way around.

Mr. Ashby: So, the fence just stays on this side of the trail?

Mr. Scheerer: Yes, but it stops here so people can still cut in this way to get to it if they
want to. It is an added expense because when it tears and rips, we end up having to buy more.

Mr. Bonin: It makes sense to do that.

Ms. Adams: It doesn’t provide any benefit. I just wanted to get consensus from the
Board. It doesn’t require any Board action. I just wanted input that you were in agreement that

the silt fence was not effective and should be removed.

o Field Management Report (4dded)
Ms. Adams: We had some field updates. Last month, we reported that the dog park

would be closed for a month for maintenance starting on April 1%,

Mr. Scheerer: We are moving right along with the dog park. We installed new sod in the
areas where holes were dug. It worn out badly. As you know, it’s Bahia grass, which goes
dormant in the wintertime, even though it’s irrigated. We ran across some challenges. It is a
very popular park. All of the apparatuses were functioning. The fountain was down, but we got
it up and running within a few days. I don’t know if there were some leftover particles, but we
ordered a new diaphragm. What happens is there is a bowl on the bottom. You push the button,
the water comes out and fills the bowl. Then it slowly drains out. Now it won’t stop letting the
water in, so, we currently have it shut off. The part will be in on Monday and we will install it
on Tuesday. One of the other questions that was asked of us was whether there are gaps on the
bottom of the split rail fence, as smaller dogs are getting out. There are gaps, so we are putting

some mesh under there with additional mulch. That will all be done. We are letting the grass

12
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grow as much as possible. It’s already been treated and fertilized. F&P was out treating for
fleas, ticks and other pesticides. We will re-evalute that, but I think we are in good shape and
ready to go. So, all things considered, I think a month off is a good approach. It will probably
be ongoing and obviously we will make minor repairs throughout the dry season, but now that
we are getting rain and temperatures are increasing, the grass is starting to grow. [ think it’s
going to look really good.

Mr. Kraljev returned to the meeting.

Ms. Adams: Mr. Kraljev, the Board took action on Resolution 2021-14, approving the
Proposed Fiscal Year 2022 Budget and setting the public hearing, subject to verifying the
location and time. Are you in favor?

Mr. Kraljev: Yes.

Ms. Adams: The Board also took action on ratifying the No Parking signs for Parcel I-5.
Are you in favor?

Mr. Kraljev: Yes.

Ms. Adams: We had some residents who called in and made public comments at the
beginning of the meeting regarding park construction nearby History Avenue causing drainage
issues and some other miscellaneous questions. Would the Board like for staff to answer those?

Mr. Bonin: I would like to address those. Regarding to the drainage, we received notice
of year end turnover to Orange County, so we went ahead and cleaned the storm pipes last week.
That is why two or three weeks ago, there was some flooding in the area. We completely
cleaned those lines and took additional intermediary steps to grade up the inlets that were
problematic for us. They are all clear, I believe because this last weekend we had no flooding
issues out there. So, I am not anticipating that is going to be a problem going forward.
Regarding the current status, revised engineering plans were submitted to Orange County. The
engineers revised the grades of that park and that is why there was a delay in construction and
completing it. It will have to be permitted to bring up the inlet to the new grade. Then we can
complete the rest of the park. So that is the current status.

Ms. Adams: What about the park construction on History Avenue?

Mr. Scheerer: That is the cell tower track.

Ms. Adams: There was a question about a dog station. I believe it’s an HOA dog station.

Ms. Lissette Beltran was inquiring about it. She forwarded to the District, a dog station that
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needs to be repaired. That is an HOA owned area. She inquired about deterring dirt bikes and
ATVs. For the Board’s information, you have recently taken action to adopt Amenity Policies
that prohibit dirt bikes. We received a video of a resident who has a YouTube Channel, building
a dirt bike track on CDD stormwater property. We are in the process of communicating with
him regarding progressive discipline up to suspension from the amenities. If he is on District
property after being suspended, he would be subject to being trespassed and arrested. So, there
is progressive discipline taking place in areas where we can enforce.

Mr. Bonin: Do we need to clarify for the record that the property between Lennar and the
school is not owned by Lennar?

Ms. Adams: That would be appropriate. The last question was fencing around that
parcel.

Mr. Bonin: We have no right to go onto someone else’s property. We can only be on our
property.

Ms. Adams: Thank you.

Mr. Ashby: It looks like “No man’s land.” 1t is a slither of land about 300 feet wide.
Moss Park Properties owns that sliver of land.

Ms. Adams: Thank for clarifying that for the record.

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor’s Request
Ms. Adams: Are there any Supervisor’s Requests or other business? If not, we need a

motion to adjourn.

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment

| On MOTION by Mr. Kraljev seconded by Mr. Ashby with all in
favor the meeting was adjourned.

Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman
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RESOLUTION 2021-15

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE STOREY
PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT FINALIZING THE
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS SECURING THE DISTRICT’S SERIES 2021
(ASSESSMENT AREA FOUR PROJECT) SPECIAL ASSESSMENT
BONDS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Storey Park Community Development District (the “District”) was
established by Ordinance No. 2015-7 of the City Council of the City of Orlando (the “City"),
adopted on March 9, 2015, contracted by Ordinance No. 2019-50 of the City, adopted October 7,
2019 and expanded by Ordinance No. 2020-53 of the City, adopted November 9, 2020, for the
purpose of providing infrastructure improvements, facilities and services to the lands within the
District as provided in Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and

WHEREAS, on March 25, 2021, the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the District
adopted Resolution No. 2021-10 authorizing, among other things, the issuance of not to exceed
$7,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its special assessment bonds in order to finance the
costs of the construction, installation and acquisition of public infrastructure, improvements and
services on lands within the District; and

WHEREAS, the District duly authorized and issued the Storey Park Community
Development District Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2021 (Assessment Area Four Project)
(the “Series 2021 Bonds”) in the amount of $6,030,000 for the purpose of funding the
construction, installation and acquisition of public infrastructure, improvements and services;
and

WHEREAS, the Storey Park Community Development District Engineer’s Report,
Revision 4, dated August 13, 2015, as amended and supplemented from time to time, including
by the Storey Park Community Development District Engineer’s Report, Revision 7 — Parcel K
Boundary Expansion, dated February 22, 2021, attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “A”
(collectively referred to as the “Engineer’s Report™), identifies and describes the components of
the project financed with the Series 2021 Bonds (the “Assessment Area Four Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Engineer’s Report estimated capital costs totaling $13,630,190, a
portion of which was to be paid directly by the developer; and

WHEREAS, the total cost to the District for the Capital Improvements was estimated at
$18,000,000 (“Total Project Costs™); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Supplemental Assessment Methodology for
Assessment Area Four for Storey Park Community Development District, dated May 24, 2021
(the “Series 2021 Assessment Methodology™), attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “B,” the
assessments are finalized in the amount of $6,030,000, which is funding a portion of the capital
costs, financing costs, capitalized interest, reserve funds and contingencies.

Resolution 2021-15 Finalizing Assessments
Storey Park Community Development District
Series 2021 Bonds — Assessment Area Four (Assessment Area Four Project)



WHEREAS, on April 22, 2021, the Board, after notice and public hearing, met as an
equalizing Board pursuant to the provisions of Section 170.08, Florida Statutes, and adopted
Resolution 2021-13 authorizing and confirming the projects described therein, equalizing and
levying special assessments to defray the Adjusted Total Project Costs and providing that this
levy shall be a lien on the property so assessed co-equal with the lien of all state, county, district,
municipal or other governmental taxes, all in accordance with Section 170.08, Florida Statutes
(“Special Assessment Lien™); and

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Storey Park
Community Development District:

1. Recitals. The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference are
incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution.

2. Authority for this Resolution. This Resolution is adopted pursuant to the
provisions of Florida law, including Chapters 170 and 190, Florida Statutes.

3. Finalization of Special Assessments Securing the Series 2021 Bonds. Pursuant
to Section 170.08, Florida Statutes, and District Resolution 2021-13, special assessments
securing the Series 2021 Bonds on all developable land within the District are to be credited the
difference in the assessment as originally made, approved and confirmed and a proportionate part
of the actual project costs of the Assessment Area Four Project. The Series 2021 Assessment
Methodology accurately reflects the amount of special assessments for the Series 2021 Bonds.
The assessments levied pursuant to Resolution 2021-13 also correctly reflect the outstanding
debt due on the Series 2021 Bonds. Therefore, pursuant to Section 170.08, Florida Statutes, and
Resolution 2021-13, the special assessments on parcels specially benefited by the Assessment
Area Four Project are hereby finalized in the amount of the outstanding debt due on the Series
2021 Bonds in accordance with Exhibit “B” herein, and is apportioned in accordance with the
methodology described in Exhibit “B,” upon the specially benefited lands indicated in the
District’s Assessment Lien Roll attached as part of the Series 2021 Assessment Methodology,
and reflects the finalized assessments due on the parcels benefited by the Series 2021 Bonds.

4, Improvement Lien Book. Immediately following the adoption of this
Resolution these special assessments as reflected herein shall be recorded by the Secretary of the
Board of the District in the District’s “Improvement Lien Book.” The special assessment or
assessments against each respective parcel shall be and shall remain a legal, valid and binding
first lien on such parcel until paid and such lien shall be co-equal with the lien of all state,
county, district, municipal or other governmenta] taxes and superior in dignity to all others liens,
titles and claims.

5. Other Provisions Remain in Effect. This Resolution is intended to supplement
Resolution 2021-13, which remains in full force and effect. This Resolution and Resolution
2021-13 shall be construed to the maximum extent possible to give full force and effect to the
provisions of each resolution. All District resolutions or parts thereof in actual conflict with this
Resolution are, to the extent of such conflict, superseded and repealed.
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6. Severability. If any section or part of a section of this Resolution is declared
invalid or unconstitutional, the validity, force and effect of any other section or part of a section
of this Resolution shall not thereby be affected or impaired unless it clearly appears that such
other section or part of a section of this Resolution is wholly or necessarily dependent upon the
section or part of a section so held to be invalid or unconstitutional.

7. Conflicts. All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of
such conflict, superseded and repealed.

8. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of June, 2021.

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE)
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SIGNATURE PAGE FOR RESOLUTION 2021-15

STOREY PARK COMMUNITY
ATTEST: DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
By:
Name: Name:
Title:

Exhibit “A”: Engineer’s Report
Exhibit “B”: Supplemental Assessment Methodology For Assessment Area Four for Storey
Park Community Development District, dated May 24, 2021
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EXHIBIT “A”
ENGINEER’S REPORT

Storey Park Community Development District Supplemental Engineer’s Report Revision 7 —
Parcel K Boundary Expansion, dated February 22, 2021

[ATTACHED BELOW]
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Section 1 Introduction

1.2 Location and General Description

The Wewahootee Planned Development (PD) (f.k.a. Innovation Place PD) (the "Development") is a mixed-use
planned project located within the City of Otlando in Orange County, Florida, Sections 32 and 3B, Township 23
South, Range 31 East and Sections 2,3,4,5,8,9,10,1,15, and 16 Township 24 South, Range 31 East. The
Development is located east of SR 417 and north of Wewahootee Road and is approximately 1266 acres +/-.
(See Exhibits 1 & 2). Zoning for the Development was approved by the City of Otlando as the Wewahootee
PD on December 16, 2013.

The Storey Park Community Development District (the "District") consists of a portion of the Development
and the District includes approximately 993.3 acres (see Exhibits 3 and 10).

In October 2019, the District approved a contraction of the District. This contraction included the extraction
of 14.94 acres within Assessment Area One, which was planned for 30 multifamily units and 82,000 square-
foot commercial development. In November 2020, the District approved an expansion of the District to add
Parcel K-1. The expansion includes 147.4 acres and is planned for 588 residential units.

1.3. District Purpose and Scope

The District was established for the purpose of financing, acquiting or constructing, maintaining and operating
a portion of the public infrastructure necessary for community development within the District. The purpose
of this repott is to provide a description of the public infrastructure improvements financed and to be financed
by the Disttict. The District has and will finance, acquire and/or, construct, operate, and maintain certain public
infrastructure improvements that are needed to serve the Development. A portion of the infrastructute
improvements will be financed with the proceeds of bonds issued by the District.

The built and proposed public infrastructure improvements, as outlined herein, are necessary for the
development of the District as required by the applicable independent unit of local government.

Description of Land Use

"The lands within the District encompass approximately 993.3 actes. Based on the PD the development program
allows for construction of 1,757 residential units (1,201 single family detached/attached units and 556 muld-
family units) and 82,000 square feet of commetcial development. The approved land uses within the District
include the following areas. Exhibits 10, 11, 15 and 16 provide detail on land use locations and the development

program.
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Proposed bevelopmeﬁt - , Ao Apprqxi'_m:-_lte Acres
Office Low Intensity® o 5149.5 o
Neighborhood Activity Center 17.2
Consel-'vation 342.8
Existing Lake/ Conset_'vation 30.3
Roads 32.4

(1) Per City of Orlando Code 58.281, Office Low Intensity includes residential land use. The development program can
be amended based on the Ttip cquivalency conversion matrix approved with the PD.

Section 2 Government Actions

The following are the permitting agencies that will have jurisdiction for approval of construction within the
District. Depending on the location and scope of each project design, the individual petmits that need to be
obtained will need to be evaluated; not all will necessarily apply to evety sub-phase within the District.

Permitting Agencies & Permits Required
1. City of Otdando

a. Specific Parcel Master Plan

b. Preliminary Plat

c. Mass Grading (optional)

d. Final Engineeting Construction Plan Approval
e. Final Plat

2. South Florida Water Management District
a. Environmental Resource Permit
i Mass Grading/Master Stormwater Construction
ii. Final Engineering for Onsite Improvements
b. Water Use Permit (Dewatering)
i. Mass Grading/Master Storm
ii. Final Engineering for Onsite Improvements
3. Orange County Udlities
a. Final Engineering Construction Plans —Water, Sewer, and Reclaimed Water Distribution
Systems
4. TFlorida Department of Envitonmental Protection (FDEP)
a.  Water Distribution System
b. Sanitary Sewer System
€. National Pollutant Dischatge Elimination System (NPDES)
5. FEMA
a. Conceptual Letter of Map Revision — Fill (CLOMR-F)
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b. Letter of Map Revision — Fill (LOMR-F)
6. Army Corp of Engineers
7. Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC)
8. Florida Gas

Please refer to Exhibit 14 for a detailed summaty of the permits obtained or under review within the
Development as a whole and/or District alone. It is our opinion that there are no technical reasons existing at
this time which would prohibit the implementation of the capital improvements for the District and the public
infrastructure as presented herein and that all permits not issued, which are necessary for the District and public
infrastructure to proceed, will be obtained during the ordinary course of development.

Section 3 Infrastructure Benefit
The District will fund, and in cettain cases maintain and operate public infrastructure yielding two types of
public benefits. These benefits include:

® Project wide public benefits

¢ Incidental public benefits

The project wide public benefits are provided by infrastructure improvements that serve all lands in the
District. These public infrastructure improvements include construction of the master stormwater
management system, the sanitary sewer, potable water, and reclaimed water mains, roadway network, perimeter
landscape and irrigation improvements.

Incidental public benefits include those benefits received by the general public who do not necessarily reside
or own land within the District. The general public will benefit from the improvements provided by the District
including the regional transportation improvements, water, sewer, and reclaimed water main extensions along
Dowden Road and Storey Park Boulevard.

The proposed capital improvements identified in this repott are intended to provide specific benefit to the
assessable real property within the boundaries of the District. As the property is currently undeveloped, the
construction and maintenance of the proposed infrastructure improvements are necessary and will benefit the
propetty for the intended use as a mixed use community. The District can construct, acquire, own, operate
and/or maintain any or all of the proposed infrastructure. Lennar Homes, LLC (the Developer) or other
party/parties will construct and fund the infrastructure outside of the District and/or not funded by the
District.

Section4 Capital Improvement Plan

The District capital improvements will connect and interact with the adjacent offsite roads, stormwater
management systems, potable water, reclaimed water, and sewer systems. The proposed infrastructure
improvements addressed by this report include clements internal and external to the District. The elements
include the master stormwater management and drainage systems, roadway improvements, landscaping, street
lighting, pavement markings and signage, as well as potable watermain, reclaimed watermain and sewer
extensions required to provide utility service to the District. Detailed descriptions of the proposed capital
improvements are provided in the following sections and Exhibits 5 through 9. Exhibit 13, details the Cost
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Opinion for the District’s capital improvement plan.

The Capital Improvement Plan will be constructed and financed in logical segments, as property within the
Disttict is developed by the Developer. The District issued its first series of tax-exempt bonds for the propetty
referred to as “Assessment Area One” in 2015. Assessment Area One consists of approximately 194 acres of
land owned by the Developer and planned for approximately 701 residential units and 82,000 square feet of
commetcial space, and are hereby designated as "Area 1" and "Area 2" on Exhibit 11. The Capital
Improvement Plan for Assessment Area One provides benefit to the residential units and commercial space in
Assessment Area One and, once completed, the Capital Improvement Plan for Assessment Area One can exist
without the remaining portions of the Capital Improvement Plan being completed.

The District issued its bonds for Assessment Area Two in 2018. Assessment Area Two consists of
approximately 89 acres of land owned by the Developer and planned for approximately 263 residential units.
Assessment Area Two is hereby designated as Area 3 and Area 4 on Exhibit 11.

The District issued its bonds for Assessment Area Three in 2019. Assessment Area Three consists of
approximately 69 actes of land owned by the Developer and planned for approximately 205 residential units.
Assessment Area Three is designated as Area 5 and Area 6 on Exhibit 11.

Assessment Area Four is anticipated to be the next series of bond issuance in 2021, Assessment Area Four
consists of approximately 101 acres of land owned by the Developer and planned for approximately 357
tesidential units. Assessment Area Four is heteby designated as Area 10 and Area 11 on Exhibit 11.

Assessment Area Five is anticipated to be the following series of bond issuance in 2022. Assessment Area Five
consists of approximately 46.4 acres of land owned by the Developer and planned for approximately 231
residential units. Assessment Area Five is designated as Area 12 on Exhibit 11.

Thete may, however, be certain developer obligations under petmits or agreements, including offsite
improvements, that the Developer will be obligated to complete even if the remaining portions of the Capital
Improvement Plan are not completed.

Section 5 Description of Capital Improvement Plan

5.1 Roadway Improvements

The District will fund roadway construction internal to the District consisting of local roadways and public
alleys. Exhibit 5, Roadway Ownership Map, provides a graphical representation of the proposed
improvements. All such local roadways or alleys will be open to the public.

Dowden Road, Storey Park Boulevatd, and Story Time Drive, within the CDD boundary, was constructed
and funded by the Developer and, per the Annexation and Development Agreement, dated September 23,
2013 (“Annexation Agreement”), the City of Orlando provided impact fee credits for the construction costs
associated with Dowden Road, Storey Park Boulevard, and Story Time Drive. These three roadways are not
included in the District’s capital improvement plan since they are impact fee eligible.

Page 7 0f 16



In addition to roadway construction, the Developer is obligated, per the Annexation Agreement, to pay a
Transportation Proportionate Share for Off-site Roadway Improvements. Transportation Phase 1 payments
have been identified to fund improvements to existing Narcoossee Road (Goldenrod to Lee Vista) and existing
Dowden Road (Narcoossee to SR 417). The obligation for payment of the Phase 1 proportionate share, based
on segments of land ownership area and development program, is as follows:

Transportation Prop. Share Phase 1 Percent Fee Amount

Developer (“Lennat”™) 48.16% $1,544,365

The Developer payment amount of $1,544,365 has been included as part of the District capital improvement
plan costs since it is a required cost of public improvements and the proportionate share payment is not impact
fee credit eligible. Any payment made by the Developet will be a payment made on behalf of the District. This
amount correlates to the land area and development program within the District boundary. Payment of the
Ttansportation Proportionate share is due to the City following approval of each Specific Parcel Master Plan
(SPMP) based on the number of lots approved.

5.2 Stormwater Management

The District will fund the construction of the master stormwater management system for the lands within the
District. This system is made up of wet detention stormwater treatment ponds, control structures, spreader
swales, inlets, manholes and storm pipes. The proposed ponds and outfall structures have been designed to
provide water quality treatment and attenuation in accordance with the City of Otlando and South Florida
Water Management District regulations. The stormwater management system has been designed to
accommodate on-site runoff in addition to offsite flows which have historically entered the project site, Exhibit
6A, Post-Development Basin Map and Exhibit 6B, Stormwater Management Map, provide graphical
representations of the stormwatet management system.,

5.3 100-Year Floodplain

Putsuant to the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panels
12097C 0060G dated June 18, 2013, portions of the project site are located within the 100-year flood zones,
Zone AE and Zone A. Areas located within Zone AE are designated by FEMA with a determined 100-year
flood elevation; areas within Zone A are identified as within the 100-year floodplain but with an undetermined
elevation. Exhibit 6C, FEMA 100-Year Floodplain details the floodplain limits relative to the District
boundaries. The majority of the property within the District lies within FEMA Zone X, which is outside of
the 500 year flood zone.

Any filled areas below the 100-year flood elevation will result in impacts which will require mitigation in the
form of a volume-for-volume match between floodplain impacts and compensating storage. Detailed
floodplain fill impact and compensating storage calculations were prepared and approved with the Master
Drainage Plan and SFWMD ERP Permit approved by SFWMD and City of Orlando. Note, the compensating
stotage for the Development was prepared for the Development as a whole. Because the District will be
developed in phases, special attention will need to be provided to the location of the floodplain compensating
storage as it will not always be located within the same parcel. As of Februaty 2015, an application was currently
under review by FEMA for a Conditional Letter of Map Revision based on Fill (CLOMR-F) which provides
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conceptual approval of the fill to be placed on the property which would remove areas of the Development
from Zone AE. After fill has been placed, survey elevations will be required and a Letter of Map Revision
based on fill LOMR-F will be required to receive final approval from FEMA that Development areas are
located outside of Zone AE and therefore removed from the 100-year floodplain. The District capital
improvement costs for fill are associated only with capital improvements and the District will not finance the
cost of any fill placed or stored on any private lands within the District.

5.4 Potable Water, Reclaimed Water, & Wastewater Utilities

Potable watet setvice for the Development will be provided by Orange County Utlities (OCU). A Master
Utility Plan (MUP) was approved by OCU for the Development in September 2014 (report dated July 25, 2014).
The MUP established phasing based on available capacity within OCU existing infrastructure with future phases
dependent on regional improvements to be completed by OCU as Capital Improvement Projects (CIP).

OCU has multiple projects under design and/or construction that will provide additional service capacity to
this region. Exhibits 7B, 8B, and 9B provide details on the locations of the Regional Utilities Infrastructure
Improvements. The regional improvements include:

® Hastern Service Area Storage and Re-pump Facility
® Dowden Road - 20 inch watermain, 20 inch forcemain
e Storey Park Boulevard — 36 inch watermain, 20 inch reclaimed watermain, 20 inch forcemain
¢ Story Time Drive — 20 inch watermain, 12 inch reclaimed watermain,
® Connections from Lee Vista to Storage and Re-pump Facility — 30 inch watermain, 24 inch
reclaimed watermain
The MUP utilities infrastructure design for the Development includes three phases, Phase 1, Phases 1-3 and
Build-out. Note Phases 1-3 are located within Area 1 (within Assessment Area One) identified on Exhibit 11.

® Phase 1 development includes 90 residential units associated with Storey Park Phase 1 Construction
Plans. This project was completed on February 2015.
® Phase 1-3 development includes portions of Parcels I and ] (the Developer owned property west of
Story Time Drive). The design of the watet, sewet, and reclaimed water systems to serve the Phase 1
and Phase 1-3 development is based on the connection to the existing 16 inch water main, 16 inch
force main, and 16 inch reclaimed water main located southwest of Storey Park along Moss Park
Road. Phase 1-3 accounts for Residential and Office/Recteational Uses totaling 385 Equivalent
Residential Units (ERU).
® The design for the build-out development includes capacity that will be available once the proposed
OCU CIP projects listed above are completed and connected to OCU’s eastern regional facilities.
Build-out condition requires construction of the OCU CIP projects to provide capacity for the full
development program within the Development.
Points of connection for Phase 1-3 of the Development are located along existing Moss Patk Road west of
the Development. Existing utilities at the point of connection include 16” watermain, 16” reclaimed
watermain, and 16” forcemain. The infrastructure along Storey Park Boulevard to the point of connection at
Moss Patk Road was designed, permitted and constructed with the Phase 1 Construction Plans.

5.4.1  Potable Water Distribution System
The District will fund the construction of the water distribution system within the District. The potable water
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system will be conveyed to, and owned and maintained by OCU once it has been certified complete. The main
sizing within the District will be required to be designed and constructed based on the approved MUP. Exhibit
7A, Potable Water Distribution System Map, provides a graphical representation of the watermains to be
constructed within the District.

5.4.2  Reclaimed Water Distribution System

The District will fund the construction of the reclaimed water distribution system within the District. The
reclaimed water system will be conveyed to, and owned and maintained by OCU once it has been certified
complete by the District. The main sizing within the District will be required to be designed and constructed
based on the approved MUP. Exhibit 8A, Reclaimed Water Distribution System Map, provides a graphical
representation of the proposed system within the District.

54.3 Wastewater System

The District will fund the construction of the gravity sewer, forcemain, and lift station infrastructure within
the Disttict. The wastewater system will be conveyed to, and owned and maintained by OCU once it has been
certified complete by the District. The main sizing and lift stations within the District will be required to be
designed and constructed based on the approved MUP. Exhibit 9A, Wastewater System Map, provides a
graphical representation of the proposed system within the District.

5.5 Landscape & Hardscape

The District will fund landscape and hardscape construction and maintenance which may include petimeter
landscape buffers, master signage, way finding signage, entry hardscape features, entry landscape, amenity area
landscape and hardscape, pedestrian/mult-purpose trails, and street trees. The District will own and maintain
foregoing improvements. All such improvements will be located on District lands or wheteby the District will
have a permanent easement.

5.6 Electrical Distribution and Street Lights

The District will fund the differential cost of installation of underground electric service to the District. The
District will fund, with its operating funds, the installation, leasing, and/ot monthly service charges associated
with the upgraded street lighting fixtures along CDD owned and maintained roadways within the District.
Duke Energy will own and maintain the electtic and street light infrastructure.

5.7 Professional and Inspection Fees

In order to design, permit, and construct the proposed District capital improvement plan, professional services
are required by various consultants. The consultants required are: civil engineer, geotechnical, planner,
environmental, surveying, and landscape architect. Duting construction, the various permitting agencies will
obsetve and inspect the project. Each of the agencies will charge an inspection fee to cover the costs associated
with an inspector visiting the site to observe construction progtess and confirm that the project is constructed
in accordance with their respective approved plans, permits, rules, and regulations. A proportionate share of
the Professional Services and Inspections Fees are included in the costs for the District capital improvement
plan.
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5.8 Construction Schedule

As of February 2021, the following is the anticipated schedule for the entitlements necessary for the District

and construction of the District’s capital improvement plans.
p

ACTUAL DATE OF
TASK TO BE COMPLETED COMPLETION
1. Entitlements
a) Land Use/Zoning December 2013
b) City of Orlando Preliminarv Plat Approval - Phases 1-8 April 2014
c) City of Orlando Specific Parcel Master Plan Approval - Phase 1-8 April 2014
d) City of Orlando Engineering Plan Approval - Phase 1 September 2014
€) Orange County Utilities Plan Approval - Phase 1 November 2014
f) FDEP Sewer and Water Permits - Phase 1 December 2014
g) SFWMD ERP Application Approval - Phase 1 August 2014
h) ACOE Permit Approval January 2012
i) Platting Phase 1 August 2015
ACTUAL DATE OF
2. Construction/Site Work (Phase 1 90 single family lots) COMPLETION
a) Roadwavs and Allevs July 2015
b) Stormwater Improvements April 2015
c¢) Infrastructure and Earthworks January 2015
d) Potable Water Distribution May 2015
€) Reclaimed Water Distribution June 2015
f) Sanitary Sewer System Julv 2015
o) Offssite Transportation Improvements (Dowden Road) August 2015
h) Amenities Aupust 2015
i) Electrical Distribution & Street Lights August 2015
ACTUAL DATE OF
3. Construction/Site Work (Phase 2 144 Single Family & Townhome lots) COMPLETION
a) Roadways and Alleys September 2015
b) Stormwater Improvements July 2015
¢) Infrastructure and Earthworks May 2015
d) Potable Water Distribution August 2015
¢) Reclaimed Water Disttibution August 2015
f) Sanitary Sewer Svstem August 2015
) Amenities October 2015
h) Electrical Distribution & Street Lights October 2015
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ACTUAL DATE OF

4. Construction/Site Work (Phase 3 149 Single Family & Townhome lots) COMPLETION
a) Roadways and Alleys May 2017
b) Stormwater Improvements April 2017
c) Infrastructure and Earthworks April 2017
d) Potable Water Distribution May 2017
¢) Reclaimed Water Distribution Mayv 2017
t) Sanitary Sewer System May 2017
o) Amenites December 2017
h) Electrical Distribution & Street Lights August 2017
ACTUAL DATE OF
5. Construction/Site Work (Phase 4 118 Single Family & Townhome lots) COMPLETION
a) Roadways and Alleys October 2017
b) Stormwater Improvements May 2017
c) Infrastructure and Earthworks September 2017
d) Potable Water Distribution August 2017
e) Reclaimed Water Distribution August 2017
f) Sanitary Sewer System August 2017
¢) Amenities December 2017
h) Electrical Distribution & Street Lights December 2017
6. Construction/Site Work (Parcel L Phase 1 150 Single Family & ACTUAL DATE OF
Townhome lots) COMPLETION
a) Roadways and Alleys December 2017
b) Stormwater Improvements December 2017
c) Infrastructure and Earthworks December 2017
d) Potable Water Distribution April 2019
e) Reclaimed Water Distribution April 2019
t) Sanitary Sewer System April 2019
o) Amenites 2021
h) Electrical Distribution & Street Lights December 2017
7. Construction/Site Work (Parcel L Phase 2 143 Single Family & ACTUAL DATE OF
Townhome lots) COMPLETION
a) Roadways and Alleys Januarv 2018
b) Stormwater Improvements January 2018
c) Infrastructure and Earthworks January 2018
d) Potable Water Distribution June 2019
e) Reclaimed Water Distribution June 2019
f) Sanitary Sewer System June 2019
h) Electrical Distribution & Street Lights January 2018
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8. Construction/Site Work (Parcel L Phase 3 129 Single Family & ACTUAL DATE OF
Townhome lots) COMPLETION
a) Roadways and Alleys January 2019
b) Stormwater Improvements January 2019
¢) Inftastructure and Earthworks January 2019
d) Potable Water Distribution June 2019
e) Reclaimed Water Distribution June 2019
f) Sanitary Sewer System June 2019
h) Electrical Distribution & Street Lights January 2019
9. Construction/Site Work (Parcel L Phase 4 76 Single Family & ACTUAL DATE OF
Townhome lots) COMPLETION
2) Roadways and Alleys September 2020
b) Stormwater Improvements September 2020
c) Infrastructure and Earthworks September 2020
d) Potable Water Distribution July 2020
e) Reclaimed Water Distribution July 2020
f) Sanitary Sewer System July 2020
. L . September 2020
g) Electrical Distribution & Street Lights
10. Construction/Site Work (Parcel K Phase 1 160 Single Family & ANTICIPATED DATE OF
Townhome lots) COMPLETION
a) Roadways and Alleys April 2021
b) Stormwater Improvements April 2021
¢) Infrastructure and Earthworks April 2021
d) Potable Water Distribution April 2021
¢) Reclaimed Water Distribution April 2021
f) Sanitary Sewer System April 2021
¢) Amenities 2022
h) Electrical Distribution & Street Lights April 2021
11. Construction/Site Work (Parcel K Phase 2 197 Single Family & ANTICIPATED DATE OF
Townhome lots) COMPLETION
) Roadways and Alleys September 2021
September 2021
b) Stormwater Improvements
¢) Infrastructure and Earthworks September 2021
d) Potable Water Distribution September 2021
¢) Reclaimed Water Distribution September 2021
f) Sanitary Sewer System September 2021
g) Electrical Distribution & Street Lights September 2021
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12. Construction/Site Work (Parcel K Phase 3 231 Single Family & ANTICIPATED DATE OF

Townhome lots) COMPLETION
a) Roadways and Alleys September 2022
b) Stormwatet Improvements September 2022

c) Infrastructure and Earthworks September 2022
d) Potable Water Distribution September 2022
¢) Reclaimed Water Distribution September 2022
f) Sanitary Sewer System September 2022
g) Electrical Distribution & Street Lights September 2022

Section 6 Ovwnership and Maintenance

Proposed District Capital Ownership Maintenance

Improvements Plan

Onsite Roadway & Alley Improvements CDD CDD

Master Stormwater Management System CDD CDD

Potable Water Distribution System County County

Sanitary Sewer System County County

Reclaimed Water Distribution System County County

Landscaping, Irrigation and Signage CDD CDD !

Electrical Distribution & Street Lights Duke Energy/CDD Duke Energy/CDD

Section 7 Roadway Rights-of-Way, Stormwater Management Ponds and Other Open Spaces
Real property interests for lands within the District needed for construction, operation, and maintenance of
District facilities have been or will be conveyed and/or dedicated by the owner thereof to the District or other
public entity at no cost.

Section 8 Estimate of Probable Capital Improvement Costs

‘The Estimate of Probable Capital Improvement Plan Costs is provided in Exhibit 13. Please note that the costs
are preliminary in nature and subject to change based on final engineering, permitting, and changes in
construction cost due to market fluctuation,

Section 9 Conclusions and Summary Opinion

The capital improvement plan infrastructure improvements as described are necessary for the functional
development of the property within the District as tequired by the applicable local governmental agencies. The
planning and design of the infrastructure has been and will be in accordance with current governmental
regulatory requitements. The public infrastructure as described in this report serves/will serve its intended
function provided the construction is in substantial compliance with the future design and permits which will
be required by the District. In addition to the annual non-ad valorem assessments to be levied and collected to
pay debt service on the proposed bonds, the District will levy and collect an annual "Operating and
Maintenance" assessment to be determined, assessed and levied by the District's Board of Supervisors upon
the assessable real property within the District, for the purpose of defraying the cost and expenses of
maintaining District-owned improvements.
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The construction costs for the District’s capital improvement plan in this report are based on the Specific
Parcel Master Plans for the District as approved by the City of Otlando. In out professional opinion, and to
the best of our knowledge and belief, the costs provided herein for the District are reasonable to complete the
construction of the infrastructure improvements desctibed herein. All of the proposed infrastructure capital
improvement plan costs are public improvements or community facilities as set forth in sections 190.012(1)
and (2) of the Florida Statutes.

The summary of probable infrastructure construction costs is only an opinion and not a guaranteed maximum
price. Historical costs, actual bids and information from other professionals or contractors have been used in
the preparation of this report. Contractors who have conttibuted in providing the cost data included in this
report are reputable entities with experience in Central Florida. It is therefore our opinion that the construction
of the proposed District capital improvement plan can be completed at the costs as stated.

The District will pay no more for the public improvements than the lesser of the actual cost or the fair market
value thereof. The benefit to the assessable lands within the District will equal or exceed the costs thereof.

The labor matket, future costs of equipment and materials, increased regulatory actions and requirements, and

the actual construction process are all beyond our control. Due to this inherent opportunity for fluctuation in
cost, the total final cost may be more or less than this opinion.

Christina M. Baxter
State of Florida Professional Engineer No. 67547
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ORDINANCE NO. 2020-53

1 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA,
2 GRANTING A PETITION TO EXPAND THE
3 BOUNDARIES. OF THE STOREY PARK COMMUNITY
4 DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, AS INITIATED BY THE
5 DISTRICT'S BOARD OF SUPERVISORS; AMENDING
6 ORDINANCE NO. 201950 TO EXPAND THE
7 BOUNDARIES OF THE STOREY PARK COMMUNITY
8 DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, WHICH IS GENERALLY
9 LOCATED EAST OF STATE ROAD 417 AND NORTH OF
10 MOSS PARK ROAD, IN ACCORDANCE WITH SAID
11 PETITION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY,
12 CORRECTION OF SCRIVENER'S ERRORS, AND AN
13 EFFECTIVE DATE.

14

15 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, the City Counci! of the City

16 |of Orando, Florida (the “City Council”), established the Storey Park Community
17 | Development District (the “District”) by that certain City of Orando (°City") ordinance No.
18 |2015-7 (the “Establishing Ordinence”) on March 17, 2015; and

20 | WHEREAS, on October 7, 2019, the Orando City Council adopted City ordinance
21 [ number 2019-50, {the “2019 Ordinance"} which ordinance amended the Establishing
22 | Ordinance fo contract the original boundaries of the district to reduce the area of the district
23 | from 860.8 acres to 845.86 acres, such 2019 Ordinance being requested by the Board of
24 | Supervisors of the Storey Park Community Development District: and

26 WHEREAS, the District's Board of Supervisors (the “petitioner”), having obtained
27 | written consent to expansion of the District's boundaries by the owners of one-hundred
28 | percent (100%) of the owners of the real property to be now added to the District,
29 | submitted to the City on September 3, 2020, a Pelition to Expand the Storey Park
30 | Community Development District {the “Petition”), and thereby petitioned the Orlando City
31 | Council to expand the boundaries of the District in accordance with the Petition by
32 | amending the 2019 Ordinance pursuant to Section 190.046, Florida Statutes; and

34 WHEREAS, a public hearing has been conducted by the Orlando City Councll on
35 | November 9, 2020, in accordance with the requirements and procedures of Section
36 | 190.046(1), Florida Statutes, and all other applicable requirements and procedures of the
37 | Florida Statutes and the Code of the City of Orlando, Florida (the “Orlando City Code™),
38 | and all interested persons and affected units of general-purpose local government were
39 |afforded an opportunity to present oral and written comments on the petition at said duly
40 | noticed public hearing; and

4]
42 WHEREAS, upon consideration of the record established at that hearing, the City
43 | Council determined and found as follows:
44
45 1. That the statements within the Petition were true and correct: and
46
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2. That the proposed expansion of the District’s boundaries is not inconsistent
with any applicable element or portions of the adopted City of Orlando
comprehensive plan, as amended, or any applicable elements of the state
comprehensive plan; and

3. That the area of land within the prapased District is of sufficient size, is
sufficiently contiguous to be developable as one functional interrelated
community; and

4. That the District Is the best alternative available for delivering community
development services and facilities to the area that will be served by the
District; and

5. That the community development services and facilities of the District will
be compatible with the capacity and uses of existing local and regional
community development services and facilities; and

6. That the area that will be served by the District is amenable to separate
special-district govemment,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE city
OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. AUTHORITY. This ordinance is enacted in compliance with and
pursuant to the Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, Chapter 190,
Florida Statutes.

SECTION 2. FINDINGS. The foregoing recitals, determinations, and findings are
true and correct and are incorporated herein, adopted hereby, and made a part hereof.

SECTION 3. GRANT OF PETITION. Pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes,
the Petition to Expand the Storey Park Community Development District submitted by the
District's Board of Supervisors on September 3, 2020, is hereby granted.

SECTION 4. AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2018-50 AND EXPANDING THE
DISTRICT'S BOUNDARIES. Pursuant to Chapter 180, Fiorida Statutes, and the petition
submitted by the District's Board of Supervisors, City Ordinance number 2019-50 js

SECTION 5. SCRIVENER'S ERROR. The City attorney may correct scrivener's

errors found in this ordinance by filing a corrected copy of this ordinance with the city clerk.
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ORDINANCE NO. 2020-53

91
92 SECTION 6. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this ordinance or its application
93 | toany person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity does not affect other provisions
94 | or applications of this ordinance which can be glven effect without the invalid provision or
95 | application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are severable,

96

97 SECTION 7. REPEAL. All ordinances or parts of ordinances previously adopted
98 |and conflicting with this ordinance are hereby repealed.
99
100 SECTION 8. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance takes effect immediately upon
101 | adoption.
102
103 DONE, THE PUBLIC NOTICE, in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of
104 | Orlando, Florida, by the City Clerk of the City of Orlando, Florida, this ij day of
105 0V bET). , 2020,
106
107 DONE, THE FIRST READING, by the City Council of the City of Orlandg, Florida,
108 | at a regular meeting, this |9 dayof Dcrodbe - , 2020.
109
110 DONE, THE SECOND READING, HEARING, AND ENACTED ON FINAL

111 | PASSAGE, by an affirmativs vote of a majority of a quorum present of the City Council of
112 |the City of Orlando, Florida, at a regular meeting, this i day of
113 Nolem b e 2~ 2020.

114
115
116
117 BY THE MAYOR OF T CITY OF
118 ORLANDO, FLORIDA:

120
121
122
123
124 | ATTEST, BY THE CLERK OF THE
125 CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
126 ORLANDO, FLORIDA:

127
128
129
130 | City Clbric
131 ) .
132 | Siephame Uerdouo
133 | Print Name

134
135
136
137
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ORDINANCE NO. 2020-53

138 | APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

139 | FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE

140 | CITY OF ORLANDO, FLORIDA:

147 | Print Name

148 **IRemainder of page intentionally left blank.]**
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EXHIBIT
A

EXHIBIT 1

GENERAL LOCATION OF THE
STOREY PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT WITH
THE GENERAL LOCATION OF THE PROPOSED EXPANSION

Location Map

[ATTACHED]




Location Map and Proposed Expansion
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OMPOSITE IT 2

OVERALL METES AND BOUNDS LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE EXPANDED
BOUNDARY OF THE STOREY PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
AND A METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION OF THE PARCEL K EXPANSION
PROPERTY

[ATTACHED)]




A portion of Seclions 32 and 33, Township 23 South, Range 31 East and a portion of
Sections 3, 4, 5, 9 and 10, Township 24 South, Range 31 East, Orange County, Florida,
being more particularly described as follows:

Begin at the West 1/4 comer of Section 33, Township 23 South, Range 31 East, Orange
County, Florida; thence S 61°17'20" E along the North line of lands described in Official
Records Book 3717, Page 250, Public Records of Orange County, Florida a distance of
1720.59 feset to a point on the wetland boundary line reviewed and verified by the
Orange County Environmental Protection Department on November 6 and 7, 2007;
thence along said wetlands boundary line the following fifty elght (58) courses and
distances : S 14°22'29" W a distance of 154.31 feet; thence S 28°19'04” E a distance of
68.91 feet; thence S 15°32'43” E a distance of 158.95 feet; thence S 64°22'09" E a
distance of 90.23 feet; thence S 37°30'02” E a distance of 84.14 feet; thence

S 37°46'04” E a distance of 122.39 feet; thence S 13°46'22" E a distance of 138.15 feet;
thence S 35°36°32" E a distance of 105.69 feet; thence S 41°58'09" E a distance of
146.44 feet; thence S 18°47°13" E a distance of 145.20 foet; thence S 12°32'22" W a
distance of 111.23 feet; thence S 22°31'47" E a distance of 102.70 feet; thence

8 03°16'49” W a distance of 130.72 feet; thence S 04°19'33" W a distance of 152,59
feet; thence § 24°30'16” E a distance of 144.90 feet; thence S 13°57'50" E a distance of
124.66 feet; thence S 07°06'25" W a distance of 89.98 feet; thence S 16°44'41"E a
distance of 152.03 feet; thence S 00°19'09" E a distance of 150.81 feet; thence

§ 05°47°23" E a distance of 162.38 feet; thence S 21°09'32" W a distance of 112.59
feet; thence S 27°20'15” E a distance of 159.90 feet; thence $ 13°03'16" E a distance of
1498.20 feet; thence S 20°07'53" E a distance of 146.55 feet; thence S 18°52'05" E a
distance of 173.68 feet; thence S 10°13'46" E a distance of 128.44 feet; thence

S 24°37'37" E a distance of 147.44 feet; thencs S 45°50'13" E a distance of 186.39 feet:
thence S 42°44’17” E a distance of 138.30 feet; thence N 77°47'54” E a distance of
110.91 feet; thence N 49°41'04” E a distance of 100.70 feet; thence N 48°50'15”"E a
distance of 80.30 feet; thence N 27°34'25" E a distance of 70.38 feet; thence

N 56°68°24" E a distance of 94.39 feet; thence N 21°07'39" E a distance of 79.10 feet;
thence N 35°25'45" E a distance of 112.96 feet; thence N 45°41'54” E a distance of
102.13 feet; thence N 44°31'57" E a distance of 113.56 feet; thence N 55°25'40" E a
distance of 127.36 feet; thence N 60°11'14” E a distance of 147 .37 feet; thence

N 72°10'08" E a distance of 106.20 feet; thence N 85°13'46" E a distance of 179.40
feet; thence S 73°45'11” E a distance of 136.18 feet; thence S 63°14'11” E a distance of
245.10 feet; thence S 52°46'17” E a distance of 206.40 feet; thence S 29°11'40"E a
distance of 163.19 feet; thence S 41°05'16" E a distance of 129.65 feet; thence

S 02°12'46” E a distance of 68,89 feet: thence S 14°10'22" E a distance of 194.24 feet;
thence S 02°07'05” W a distance of 150.17 feet; thence S 29°27'10" E a distance of
190.58 feet; thence S 23°56'51" E a distance of 112.12 feet; thence S 08°11'18"E g
distance of 117.34 feet; thence S 17°08'38” E a distance of 176.27 feet; thence

S 21°20'26" E a distance of 153.77 feet; thence S 21°28'16" E distance of 190.04 feet:
thence S 36°49'08" E a distance of 209.10 feet; thence S 17°35'33” E a distance of
118.61 feet; thence leaving said wetland boundary line S 14°57°07" E a distance of
161.57 feet; thence S 28°30'29" E a distance of 34.45 feet to the point of curvature of a
curve concave Westerly, having a central angle of 26°09'20” and a radius of 450.00




feet; thence Southeasterly a distance of 205.43 feet along the arc of said curve to a
point on the North line of a 50.00' wide Florida Gas Transmission Company Easement
per Official Records Book 1682. Page 340, Public Records of Orange County, Florida
(chord bearing and distance between said points being S 15°25'49” E 203.65 feet );
thence along the North line of said Florida Gas Transmission Company easement the
following two (2) courses and distances : N 88°03'05° E a distance of 577.90 feet:
thence N 88°58'56" E a distance of 753.81 fest (o a point on said wetland boundary line;
thence along said wetland boundary line the following twenty six (26) courses and
distances : N 36°35'39" W a distance of 37.19 feet; thence N 15°25'32" W a distance of
130.04 feet; thence N 37°25'51" E a distance of 121.96 feet: thence N 1 0°10'16" W a
distance of 166.55 feet; thence N 05°00'16” W a distance of 140.66 feet; thence

N 04°58'21" E a distance of 156,33 feet; thence N 16°01'27" E a distance of 140.67
feet; thence N 04°37°40" E a distance of 158,16 fest; thence N 05°22'02" W a distance
of 119.20 feet; thence N 06°25'24” E a distance of 183.60 feet; thence N 06°03'50" W a
distance of 127.13 feet; thence N 18°43'17" W a distance of 114.53 feet; thence

N 19°64'05" W a distance of 89.34 feet; thence N 30°53'30" W a distance of 103.56
feet; thence N 41°21'54” W a distance of 114.08 feet; thence N 32°24'51" W a distance
of 139.77 feet; thence N 27°30'54" W a distance of 115.98 feet; thence N 22°01'28" W a
distance of 148.91 feet; thence N 28°31'40" W a distance of 158.13 feet; thence

N 08°06'30" W a distance of 178.38 feet; thence N 30°19'07" W a distance of 152.95
fest; thence N 40°09'20" W a distance of 157.58 feet; thence N 32°01'37” W a distance
of 101.96 feet; thence N 26°42'45° W a distance of 97.33 fest; thence N 47°08'51" W a
distance of 62.27 feet; thence N 12°33'22" W a distance of 100.34 feet; thence

S 63°21'29" E along the North line of sald lands a distance of 3,642.56 feet to a point on
the East line of the W 1/2 of the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4 of Section 3, Township 24 South,
Range 31 East, Orange County, Florida; thence S 00°26'28" E along the East line of
said W 1/2 of the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4 a distance of 989.78 feet fo the Southeast
comer of said W 1/2 of the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4, said point being the Northeast corner
of the W 1/2 of the NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of sald Section 3; thence S 00°46'30" E along
the East line of said W 1/2 of the NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 a distance of 1331.29 feet to a
point on the South line of said W 1/2 of the NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4; thence N 89°57'27" W
along said South line a distance of 663.79 feet to the Southwest corner of said W 1/2 of
the NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4, said point being the Southeast comer of the N 1/2 of the SW
1/4 of sald Section 3; thence N 89°45'40" W along the South line of said N 1/2 of the
SW 1/4 a distance of 660.35 feet to a point on the East line of the W 1/2 of the SE 1/4 of
the SW 1/4 of said Section 3; thence S 00°35'37" E along the East line of said W 1/2 of
the SE 1/4 of the SW 1/4 a distance of 1331.00 feet to a point on the South line of said
Section 3; thence N 89°39"25" W along the South line of said Section 3 a distance of
1791.62 feet to a point on the Northerly right of way line of Wewahootee Road as
described in Official Records Book 5761, Page 3567, Public Records of Orange County,
Florida, said point being on a non-tangent curve, concave Southeasterly, having a
radius of 653.41 feet, a central angle of 44°11'05" and a chord bearing of

S 45°14°21" W, a radius of 653.41 feet; thence from a tangent bearing of S 67°19'54" W
Southwesterly along the arc of said curve and along said Northerly right of way line a
distance of 503.89 feet to the point of tangency of said curve; thence continue along
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said right of way line the following three (3) courses and distances: S 23°08'49" W a
distance of 301.23 feet; thence S 20°56'14" W a distance of 308.13 feet: thence

S 21°05'31" W a distance of 316.40 feet to a point on the Northerly right of way line of
the Orlando Utility Commission Raiiroad Right of Way as described in Official Records
Book 3491, Page 539, Public Records of Orange County, Florida; thence S 57°16'16" W
along the Northerly right of way line of said Orlando Utility Commission Railroad Right of
Way a distance of 2612.65 feet to a point on the North right of way line of Moss Park
Road as shown on Orange County Highway Construction Right of Way Map dated May
30, 1997; thence N 89°49'06" W along said North line a distance of 17.41 feet to a point
on the North-South Mid Section line of said Section 8, Township 24 South, Range 31
East, Orange County, Florida; thence N 01°27'48" E along said North-South Mid
Section line a distance of 1289.57 feet to a point on the North line of the SW 1/4 of the
NE 1/4 of sald Section 9; thence S 89°49'02" E along the North line of said SW 1/4 of
the NE 1/4 a distance of 542.58 feet to a point on the Easterly line of lands described in
Official Records Book 4506, Page 1137, Public Records of Orange County, Florida;
thence N 34°57'14" W along said Easterly line a distance of 1467.83 foet to a point on
the Northerly line of said lands; thence N 89°49'05" W a distance of 128.19 feet along
said Northerly line to a point on said wetland boundary line; thence: along said wetland
boundary line the following twenty seven (27) courses and distances : N 25°56'42" W a
distance of 40.91 feet; thence N 43°36'26” W a distance of 113.74 feet; thence

N 78°37'45" W a distance of 92.41 feet; thence N 53°04'07" W a distance of 119.25
feet; thence N 61°07'49° W a distance of 102.32 feet; thence N 03°01'33"E 3 distance
of 80.43 feet; thence N 19°19'40" W a distance of 134.33 feet; thence N 03°27'21" W a
distance of 147.32 feet; thence N 08°18'35" W a distance of 78.53 feet; thence

N 05°50'03” E a distance of 81.26 feet; thence N 11°33'08" E a distance of 118.54 feet:
thence N 02°28'33" E a distance of 129.41 feet; thence N 11°10°37" W a distance of
134.44 feet; thence N 27°40'10" W a distance of 168.92 fest; thence N 08°50'34" E a
distance of 103.69 feet; thence N 24°00'29" W a distance of 132.92 feet: thence

N 27°05'25” W a distance of 78.04 feet; thence N 30°27'25" W a distance of 132.63
feet; thence N 19°41'52" W a distance of 131.58 feet; thence N 55°48’08" W a distance
of 76.67 feet; thence N 85°10°00" W a distance of 112.04 feet; thence N 08°46'01" E a
distance of 79.18 feet; thence N 36°56'35" E a distance of 56.40 feet; thence

N 84°20'55" E a distance of 78.75 feet; thence N 05°35'47” E a distance of 154.84 feet;
thence N 00°51'59" W a distance of 50.27 feet; thence N 71°16'28” W a distance of 8.73
feet to a point on the South line of said Florida Gas Transmission Company Easement;
thence N 88°44°'51" E a distance of 924.92 fest along the South line of said Florida Gas
Transmission Company Easement to a point on said wetland boundary fine; thence
along said wetland boundary line the following forty seven (47) courses and distances :
N 07°18°30” W a distance of 25.85 feet; thence N 28°15"10" W a distance of 32.34 feet;
thence N 35°17°58” W a distance of 76.04 feet; thence N 29°50'06" W a distance of
76.60 feet; thence N 20°00'16” W a distance of 109.79 feet; thence N 31°11'44" W a
distance of 117.44 feet; thence N 12°26'14" W a distance of 91.52 feet; thence

N 10°13'20" W a distance of 176.26 feet; thence N 10°54'26” W a distance of 176.57
feet; thence N 23°13'24" W a distance of 167.74 feet; thence N 04°42'01" W a distance
of 173.90 feet; thence N 09°44'30" E a distance of 105.26 feet; thence N 31°28'46" W g
distance of 87.44 feet; thence N 23°51'13" W a distance of 96.24 fest; thence




N 41°54'57" W a distance of 98.57 feet; thence N 22°54'17” W a distance of 114.18
feet; thence N 10°16°02" E a distance of 155.07 feet; thence N 02°12'43” W a distance
of 165.04 feet; thence N 18°37'47" W a distance of 210.17 feet; thence N 21°48'22" W a
distance of 133.79 feet; thence N 67°21'17" W a distance of 100.62 feet; thence

S 88°28'04" W a distance of 75.92 feet; thence N 44°39'17” W a distance of 106.77 feet:
thence N 59°06'47" W a distance of 71.69 feet; thence S 28°41'03” W a distance of
73.64 fest; thence S 56°50°40" W a distance of 75.20 feet; thence S 69°07'52° W a
distance of 128.82 feet; thence S 57°09'13" W a distance of 148.22 feet; thence

S 47°23'17" W a distance of 106.41 feet; thence S 31 °07'13" W a distance of 124.28
feet; thence S 04°29'22" W a distance of 203.13 feet; thence S 02°47'15" W a distance
of 128.92 feet; thence S 15°40'35° E a distance of 140.08 feet; thence S 37°35'12" W a
distance of 143.86 feet; N 83°51'29" E a distance of 85.52 feet; thence S 77°28'56" E a
distance of 101.32 feet; thence S 51°44'15" E a distance of 62.38 feet; thence

8 05°41'57" E a distance of 159.31 feet; S 23°48'00" E a distance of 186.62 feet: thence
S 40°56'32" E a distance of 129.01 feet; thence S 68°58'38" E a distance of 106.73 feet;
thence S 29°26'38" E a distance of 125.11 feet; thence S 28°35'25” E a distance of
200.96 feet; thence S 21°26"11" E a distance of 120.67 feet; thence S 43°54'49"E a
distance of 146.20 feet; thence S 24°01'28" E a distance of 157.69 feet: thence

S 17°43'25" W a distance of 10.56 feet: thence leaving said wetland boundary line

S 88°47°51" W a distance of 342.85 feet fo the point of curvature of a curve concave
Southerly, having a radius of 11,076.00 feet; thence Westerly a distance of 78.90 feet
along the arc of said curve through a central angle of 00°24'29" to a point on said
wetland boundary line (chord bearing and distance between sald points being

S 88°35'36” W 78.90 feet); thence along said wetland boundary line the following
nineteen (19) courses and distances : N 12°04'23° W a distance of 44.52 feet; thence

N 13°46'21" W a distance of 185.45 feet, thence N 11°45'12" W a distance of 166.96
feet, thence N 45°28'13" W a distance of 79.26 feet; thence N 55°07'33" W a distance of
95.56 feet; thence N 39°03'38" W a distancs of 87.00 fest; thence N 26°03'38" W a
distance of 242.68 feet; thence N 42°01'50" W a distance of 215.53 feet; thence

N 32°46'52" W a distance of 120.95 feet, thence N 57°59'46” W a distance of 201.90
feet; thence N 15°22'51" W a distance of 167.32 feet; thence N 60°31'48” W a distance
of 144,54 feet; thence N 48°18'25" W a distance of 114.13 feet; thence N 37°12'00" W a
distance of 116.29 feet; thence N 28°23'29" W a distance of 148.18 feet; thence

N 77°03'17" W a distance of 100.88 feet; thence S 89°563'27" W a distance of 189.13
feet; thence N 85°35'39" W a distance of 91,64 feet; thence N 62°30"11” W a distance of
49.45 feet to a point on a line that is 71.43 feet East of and parallel with the East right of
way line of State Road No. 417 per Oriando-Orange County Expressway Authority

Right of Way Map, Project No. 75301 -6445-457, dated October 15, 1991; thence

N 06°24'07" W a distance of 223.16 feet along sald parallel line to a point on said
wetland boundary line; thence along said wetland boundary line the following twenty five
(25) courses and distances : N 84°05'50" E a distance of 113.57 feet; thence

N 62°04'12" E a distance of 93.87 feet: thence N 43°02'26" E a distance of 81.48 feet;
thence N 17°31'22" W a distance of 93.56 feet; thence N 11°50'22" E a distance of
114.309 feet; thence N 04°52'21" E a distance of 1 07.02 feet; thence N 08°31'31" W a
distance of 107.26 feet; thence N 03°22'01” E a distance of 113.06 feet; thence




N 27°34'50" E a distance of 61.81 feet; thence N 50°35'34" E a distance of 181.89 feet;
thencs N 39°01'03" E a distance of 137.32 feet; thence N 17°24'32" E a distance of
98.53 feet, thence N 02°44'02" E a distance of 84.77 feet; thence N 11°40'29" E a
distance of 56.68 feet; thence N 03°41'03" E a distance of 61.32 feet; thence

N 03°54'36" W a distance of 79.78 feet: thence N 17°12'14"E a distance of 117.32 feet;
thence N 87°21'21” W a distance of 54.66 feet; thence N 79°58°08" W a distance of
60.11 feet; thence S 87°15'15" W a distance of 123.37 feet; thence N 83°56'05" W a
distance of 87.73 feet; thence N 51°07"53" W a distance of 72.89 feet: thence

N 51°48'14" W a distance of 116.39 feet; thence N 50°56'35" W a distance of 80.45
feet; thence N 65°02'12" W a distance of 52.93 feet to a point on said East right of way
line of State Road No. 417 ( Eastem Beltway ), thence along said East right of way line
the following ten (10) courses and distances : thence N 19°56'49" W & distance of
237.18 feet; thence N 69°55'30" E a distance of 18.76 feet; thence N 20°04'30" W a
distance of 278.73 feet; thence S 83°35'53" W a distance of 144.00 feet; thence

N 06°24'07" W a distance of 339.61 feet; thence N 03°24'07" W a distance of 952.59
feet; thence N 86°35'50" E a distance of 203.37 feet; thence N 03°58'22" W a distance
of 457.08 feet; thence N 35°32'14" W a distance of 143.94 feet; thence N 03°58'30" W a
distance of 181.89 feet to a point on the Southerly line of a 60.00 foot wide Florida
Power Corporation Easement as described in Official Records Book 1893, Page 948,
Public Records of Orange County, Florida; thence N 63°46'19" W along said Southerly
line and along said right of way line a distance of 164.89 feet; thence N 10°45'34" E
along said right of way line a distance of 62.26 feet to a point on the Northerly line of
sald Florida Power Corporation Easement; thence S 63°46'19" E along said Northerly
line a distance of 675.42 feet to the Point of Beginning.

LESS AND EXCEPT:

Tract "D", Storey Park - Phase 1 according to the plat thereof recorded in
Plat Book 86, Pages 61 through 71, Public Records of Orange County,
Florida, being more particularty described as follows:

Begin at the Northeast corner of Tract "D", Storey Park - Phase 1 according to
the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 86, Pages 61 through 71, Public Records
of Orange County, Florida, said point being on the Easterly right of way line of
Literature Way as shown on said piat; thence along the Easterly, Southerly and
Westerly right of way line of sald Literature Way the following six (6) courses
and distances : South 04'29'50" East, a distance of 23.14 feet to a point of
curvature of a curve concave Westerly, having a radius of 270.00 fest and a
central angle of 16'66'23"; thence Southerly, a distance of 79.83 feat along the
arc of said curve to a point of compound curvature of a curve concave
Northerly, having a radius of 644.67 feet and a central angle of 141'20'15";
thence Westerly, a distance of 1590.28 feet along the arc of said curve to the
point of tangency of said curve; thence North 26' 13' 13" West, a distance of
116.22 feet to a point of curvature of a curve concave Easterly, having a radius
of 170.00 feet and a central angle of 24'47'35™ thence Northerly, a distance of
73.56 feet along the arc of sald curve to the point of tangency of said curve;
thence North O 1'25 '37" West, a distance of 50.04 feet to a point on the North




line of said Tract "D"; thence along said North line the following two (2) courses
and distances : North 88'29'54" East, a distance of 686.14 feet; thence North
89'29'59" East, a distance of 595.72 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Containing 13.68 acres, more or less.
AND

Tract "F", Storey Park - Phase 1 according fo the plat thereof recorded in Plat
Book 86, Pages 61 through 71, Public Records of Orange County, Florida,
being more particularly described as foliows:

Begin at the Southwest corner of Tract "F", Storey Park - Phase 1 according to
the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 86, Pages 61 through 71, Public
Records of Orange County, Florida, said point being on the West line of said
Tract "F"; thence along said West line the following seven (7) courses and
distances : North 02"53'50" West, a distance of 1 36.90 feet; thence North
09"57'26" West, a distance of 110.96 feet; thence North 26"19'12" West, a
distance of 148.86 feet; thence South 88"29'64" West, a distance of 85.42
feet; thence North 52"00'34" West, a distance of 18.92 feet: thence North
67"53'49" East, a distance of

50.07 feet; thence North 23"28'59* West, a distance of 21.95 feet 10 a point on
the North line of said Tract "F™ thence North 88"20'64" East, a distance of
202.52 feet along said North line 0 a point on the Westerly right of way line of
Literature Way as shown on said

plat; thence along said Westerly right of way line the following four (4)
courses and distances : South 01-25'37" East, a distance of 49.96 faef to a
point of curvature of a curve concave Easterly, having a radius of 230.00 feet
and a central angle of 24"47'35"; thence Southerly, a distance of 99.53 feet
along the arc of said curve to the point of tangency of said curve; thence
South 26" 13' 13" East, a distance of 116.22 feet fo a point of curvature of a
curve concave Northeasterly, having a radius of 704.67 fest and a central
angle of 08"22'43"; thence Southeasterly, a distance of 103.05 feet along the
arc of said curve fo a point on the South line of said Tract "F"; thence South
60"28'57" West, a distance of 190.75 feet along said South line to the POINT
OF BEGINNING.

Containing 1.26 acres, more or less,

TOTAL DISTRICT ACREAGE (as of Ordinance 2019-50 contracting District):
845.86 acres




TOGETHER WITH:

A portion of Section 33, Township 23 South, Range 31 East and a portion of Sections 3
and 4, Township 24 South, Range 31 East, Orange County, Florida, and a portion of
Tract FD-2, plat of Dowden Road - Phases 3 and 4, as recorded in Plat Book 99, Page
49 of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida being more particularly described
as follows:

COMMENCE at the Southeast Corner of Section 33, Township 23 South, Range 31
East, Orange County, Florida; thence North 61°17'20" West, a distance of 279.85 feet
along the North line of lands described in Official Records Book 3717, pages 250
through 253, of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida fo the POINT OF
BEGINNING; thence departing said North line South 22°12'38" East, a distance of
1,103.32 feet to a point of curvature of a curve concave Westerly, having a radius of
1512.50 feet and a central angle of 00°06'30"; thence Southeasterly along the arc of
said curve a distance of 2.86 feet to a point; thence South 67°47'24" West, a distance of
228.29 feet to a point of curvature of a curve concave Northerly, having a radius of
286.00 feet and a central angle of 19°54'48"™; thence Westerly along the arc of said
curve a distance of 99.40 feet to a point of tangency; thence South 87°42'12" West, a
distance of 505.14 feet to a point of curvature of a curve concave Northerly, having a
radius of 65.00 feet and a central angle of 31°24'40"; thence Westerly along the arc of
said curve a distance of 35.63 fest; thence South 67°47'24" West, a distance of 299.83
feet; thence South 48°54'44" West, a distance of 50.00 feet thence North 41°05'16"
West, a distance of 111.87 feet; thence North 29°1 1'40" West, a distance of 163.19 feet;
thence North 52°46'17" West, a distance of 206.40 feet; thence North 63°14'11" Woest, a
distance of 245.10 feet; thence North 73°45'11" West, a distance of 136.18 feet; thence
South 85°13'46" West, a distance of 179.40 feet; thence South 72°10'08" Woest, a
distance of 106.20 fest; thence South 60°11'14" West, a distance of 147.37 feet; thence
South 55°25'40" West, a distance of 127.36 feet; thence South 44°31'57" West, a
distance of 113.56 feet; thence South 45°41'54" West, a distance of 102.13 feet; thence
South 35°25'45" West, a distance of 112,96 feet; thence South 21°07'39" West, a
distance of 79.10 feet; thence South 55°58'24" West, a distance of 94.39 feet; thence
South 27°34'25" West, a distance of 70.38 feet; thence South 48°50'15" West, a
distance of 80.30 feet; thence South 49°41'04" West, a distance of 100.70 feel: thence
South 77°47'54" West, a distance of 110.91 feet; thence North 42°44'17" West, a
distance of 138.30 fest; thence North 45°50'13" West, a distance of 186.39 feet; thence
North 24°37'37" West, a distance of 147.44 feet; thence North 10°13'46" West, a
distance of 128.44 feet; thence North 18°52'05" West, a distance of 173.66 feet; thence
North 20°07'53" West, a distance of 146.55 feet; thence North 13°03'16" West, a
distance of 149.20 fest; thence North 27°20"15" Wesl, a distance of 159.90 feet; thence
North 21°09'32" East, a distance of 112.59 feet; thence North 05°47'23" West, a
distance of 162.38 feet; thence North 00°19'09" West, a distance of 150.81 feet; thence
North 16°44'41" West, a distance of 152.03 feet; thence North 07°0625" East, a
distance of 89.96 feet; thence North 13°57°50" West, a distance of 124.65 feet; thence
North 24°30'16" West, a distance of 144.90 feet; thence North 04°19'33" East, a
distance of 152.59 feet; thence North 03°16'49" East, a distance of 130.72 feet; thence




North 22°31'47" East, a distance of 102.70 feet; thence North 12°32'22* East, a
distance of 111.23 feet; thence North 18°47'13" West, a distance of 145.20 feet; thence
North 41°58'09" West, a distance of 146.44 feet; thence North 35°36'32" West, a
distance of 105.69 feet; thence North 13°46'22" West, a distance of 138.15 feet; thence
North 37°46'04" West, a distance of 122.39 feet; thence North 37°30'02" West, a
distance of 84.14 feet; thence North 64°22'09" West, a distance of 90.23 feet: thence
North 15°32'43" West, a distance of 158.95 feet; thence North 29°19'04" West, a
distance of 68.91 feet; thence North 14°22'57" East, a distance of 102.14 feet: thence
North 28°42'40" East, a distance of 50.53 feet to a point on the aforementioned North
line; thence South 61°17'20" East, a distance of 4,039.38 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING.

TOTAL DISTRICT ACREAGE (after Expansion): 993.26 acres




Published Daity
ORANGE County, Florida

Sold To;
City of Orlando - CUOO118969

400 S Orange Ave, F12
Orlando, FL, 32801-3360

Bill To:

City of Orlando - CUD0118969
400S Orange Ave, F12
Orlando, FL, 32801-3360

State Of lllinois
County Of Cook

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared

Jeremy Gates, who on oath says that he or she is an Advertising
Representative of the ORLANDO SENTINEL, a DAILY newspaper
published at the ORLANDQ SENTINEL in ORANGE County, Florida;
that the attached copy of advertisement, being a Legal Notice in the matter
of 11150-Public Hearing Notics, November 9, 2020 at 2:00 p.m., Ordinance
Number 2020-53 was published in said newspaper in the issues of Oct 27,
2020.

Affiant further says that the ssid ORLANDO SENTINEL is a newspaper
Published in said ORANGE County, Florids, and that the said newspaper
has heretofore been continuously published in said ORANGE County,
Florids, each day and has been entered as periodicals matter at the post
office in ORANGE County, Florids, in said ORANGE County, Florida, for
2 period of one year next preceding the first publication of the attached
copy of advertissment; and affiant further says that he or she has neither
patd nor promised any person, firm or corporation any discount, rebate,
commission or refund for the purpose of securing this advertisement for
publication in the said new: .

AL _—

Signature of Affiant Name of Affiant

Sworn to and subscribed before me on this 29 day of October, 2020,
by above Affiant, who is personally known to me (X) or who has produced identification { ).

ook

Signature of Notary Public

OFFICIAL SEAL

JAMES D MORGAN
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF LLINOIS
MY COMMEEI0N EXPIRES 000721

Name of Notary, Typed, Printed, or Stamped

6791221
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CDD BOUNDARY

PARCEL J

&
g" W A WEWAHOOTEE ROAD

City of Orlando (Offsite
Roadway)

CDD-Roads

- COD-Alleys
OTES:

N
1. PARCEL IS A GATED COMMUNITY. THEREFORE THE ROADWAYS ARE
PRIVATELY OWNED BY THE HOA.

2. THE CONSTRUCTION COSTS FOR DOWDEN ROAD, INNOVATION WAY HOA-Roads
SOUTH, AND THE CONNECTOR ROAD ARE NOT INCLUDED IN THE DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN

3. CDDTO MAINTAIN LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION ENHANCEMENT FOR
ROADS OWNED BY CITY OF ORLANDO.

HOA-Alleys

Roadway Ownership Map
Storey Park Community Development District {ﬁ’

p 375 0 750° 1500
November 18, 2020 2602 E Livingston St POU LO S&BENNETT e Bl T SCALE IN FEET '
P&BJob No.: 12-080 Ordando, Florida 32803 - 407.437.2594 Certificate of Authorization No, 28567 Exhibit 5




Post Development Drainage Basin Map
Innovation Place

November 18, 2020 2%02E. Livingson 5« POULOS www.pososandbennetteom
& BJob Nt 12-080 Ordando, Florida 32803 - 4074872594 o o Cemificne of Authosization No. 28567

- 412\12-060 LERNAR - BVATION PUCE\CADNCEO\CO ENGNEER'S REFORT DM ~ WITH PARCEL K\POST-DEVELDPMTNT BASIN MAP
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500°
SCALE IN FEET

Figure 6A
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MOSS PARK ROAD

November 18, 2020
P &B JobNo.: 12-080

Storey Park Community Development District

-

Stormwater Management Map

CDD BOUNDARY

LEGEND

—— STORM DRAINAGE CONVEYANCE
[ cop ponDs

[ JOINT USE PONDS {CITY OF ORLANDO & CDD)
I CITY OF ORLANDO PONDS

NOTE:
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT MAP (S
PRELIMINARY AND WILL BE REVISED UPON

FINAL DESIGN

ozt tvingens. POULOS AYBENNETT

Oraando, Fiorida 32803 - 407.487.2594

Cenificats of Authorization No. 28567

750" 0 750° 1500
SCALE IN FEET
Exhibit 6B



Source: FEMA Firm Panel 12095C0465F /
12095C0455F September 25, 2009. Vertical
Dotum (NAVDSE).

FEMA 100 Year Floodplain s

Storey Park Community Development Dist Development District

November 16,2020 . POULOS&LBENNETT [

375 _ 0

SCALE IN FEET

P & B Job No: 12-080 Ordando, Florida 32803 - 407.487.2594 Cenificate of Authorization No, 28567 bit 6C




f CDD BOUNDARY

¥
2

= _E !

/V
]
WEWAHOOTEE ROAD
N WAY SOUTH-
MOSS PARK ROAD
X
PHASE 1 CONNECTION POINT
Potable Water Distribution System Map
Storey Park Community Development District {%}'

—~ 375 0 750' 1500
Novernbes 18, 2020 2602 Livingon e POULOS&BENNET’F e EEr——==t
P&BJobNos 12-080 Qrlando, Florida 32803 - 407.487.2504 Certificate of Authorization No. 28567 Exh1b1t TA )




“op onwz p— i o o qof
s TSRS LIANNZRYS0TNOoa Sk o
B T — = _
w‘%v Faeg A01031g
SJUWAA0IAW] SIMONTISEIJUT INEA S[qEIO] [EUOIISY

“SAWOH UVINNET. W 0L STV
HSOHL EDNIS LIRIHXA STHI WOUA RLLIAO NESE ZAVH ATHL
"QEINDT T4 OSTV TILA W ARY *T [ STAD¥VS OL ADIAYES ALTIAN T

‘AVOY NEIAOd HLA QILLYLISNGD 34 OL GEEINDEE ¥ ANV
.U.QU.H(E&QNHU—Z—HEEEEE._ WWEQ
A INHWIOTIATA TVILINI ¥Od
NIVIYELLVA .91 ONLISIXH O
NOLIDANNOD 40 INIOd
ALITOVA dNNdAY % HOVHOLS
SELLITLLN ALNNOD FONVIO
INANIHIOV
INAWAOTIAA HALSVA W3d
NOISNELXA 2OIA¥ES HALVA —.
| ANHWHTIOV
| INGWJOTIAYA HALSYIW ¥Hd
Z | 7 NOISNEIXH HDIANHS NHLVA
NOISIA OSNNIHNIDNT

TVNLL O LIAfNSs AYVNIWITENA T4V SAZIS TIV ‘ELON

ASVONNOE

was
HNIT WALV DNLSTKE AYVYONNOE aGa2 ik s
WEIVA 1 e T
WALVA T Y
. WALV 00
WELVA W€ T
oo T
SHNTT ALTTLL QE50408d
e AUVAONNOd A
ANIOHAT




\

T ! CDD BOUNDARY
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WATERMAIN =
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MOSS PARK ROAD
PHASE 1 CONNECTION POINT —/X
Reclaimed Water Distribution System Map
Stotey Park Community Development District {é}

~ 375 0 750 1500
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P&B JobNoa 12-080 Odando, Florida 32803 - 407.487.2594 Certificate of Authorization No, 28567 Exhibit sA
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Exhibit 14

Storey Park
Permit Status

Permit Submitted Approved
Master
City of Orlando Annexation and Development Agreement 9/23/2013
First Amendment to the Annexation and Development Agreement 11/25/2013
City of Orlando Wewahootee PD 12/16/2013
City of Orlando SPMP 3/18/2014
Utility Construction Reimbursement Agreement for Dowden Road and Innovation Way South (OCU) 1/13/2015
Army Corp of Engineers 1/9/2012
FEMA CLOMR-F 1/26/2017
Gopher Tortoise Relocation Permit (FWC) 6/3/2014
City of Orlando Mass Grading (SPMP Parcel | & J Limits) 3/14/2014 10/30/2014
SFWMD ERP (Conceptual and Phases 1-8 of the SPMP) 3/6/2014 7/28/2014
SFWMD WUP Dewatering_ 4/14/2014 8/25/2014
Phase 1 (90 Residential Units)
City of Orlando Construction Plans 4/23/2014 10/9/2014
City of Orlando Plat 6/16/2014 4/20/2015
Orange County Utilities 4/23/2014 12/18/2014
FDEP Water 11/26/2014 12/2/2014
FDEP Sewer 11/26/2014 12/16/2014
Florida Gas Encroachment Agreement 8/21/2014
Phase 2 (144 Residential Units)
City of Orlando Construction Plans 12/22/2014 6/22/2015
City of Orlando Plat 6/9/2016  3/3/2016
Orange County Utilities 2/4/2015  5/8/2015
FDEP Water 5/21/2015 5/26/2015
FDEP Sewer 5/21/2015 5/22/2015
Phase 3 (149 Residential Units)
City of Orlando Construction Plans 6/20/2016 7/26/2016
City of Orlando Plat 9/4/2015 1/9/2017
Orange County Utilities 6/23/2016  7/1/2016
FDEP Water 6/8/2016 6/20/2016
FDEP Sewer 6/8/2016 6/14/2016
Phase 4 (119 Residential Units)
City of Orlando Construction Plans 2/2/2017 3/25/2017
City of Orlando Plat 1/17/2017 5/9/2017
Orange County Utilities 3/28/2016 1/23/2017
FDEP Water 2/7/2016 2/9/2017
FDEP Sewer 2/7/2016 2/22/2017
Parcel L Master
City of Orlando Parcel L SPMP 9/20/2016 11/14/2016
City of Orlando Mass Grading (SPMP Parcel | & J Limits 1/6/2017 6/22/2017
SFWMD ERP (Mass Grading) 1/10/2017 2/17/2017
Gopher Tortoise Relocation Permit (FWC) 6/13/2017
SFWD WUP Dewatering 4/7/2017
Parcel L Phase 1 (150 Residential Units)
City of Orlando Construction Plans 2/14/2017 12/4/2017
City of Orlando Plat 1/15/2018 4/9/2018
Orange county Utilities 2/14/2017 10/19/2017
FDEP Water 8/28/2017 8/31/2017
FDEP Sewer 4/21/2017 9/13/2017
SFWMD ERP 4/21/2017 6/12/2017
Florida Gas Encroachment Agreement complete



Parcel L Phase 2 (143 Residential Units)

City of Orlando Construction Plans 1/5/2018 1/11/2018
City of Orlando Plat 5/1/2018 9/20/2018
Orange County Utilities 11/6/2017 11/15/2017
FDEP Water 12/15/2017 12/22/2017
FDEP Sewer 12/15/2017 12/27/2017
SFWMD ERP 9/22/2017 8/28/2017
Parcel L Phase 3

City of Orlando Construction Plans 3/14/2018 1/23/2019
City of Orlando Plat 9/13/2018 4/3/2019
Orange County Utilities 3/14/2018  8/8/2018
FDEP Water 10/15/2018 10/19/2018
FDEP Sewer 10/21/2018 12/11/2018
SFWMD ERP 3/26/2018 6/13/2018
Parcel L Phase 4

City of Orlando Construction Plans 3/30/2018 1/23/2019
City of Orlando Plat 7/12/2019 12/18/2019
Orange County Utilities 3/30/2018 9/13/2018
FDEP Water 9/14/2018 10/17/2018
FDEP Sewer 9/14/2018 10/19/2018
SFWMD ERP . 6/8/2018 9/1/2018
Parcel K Master

City of Orlando Parcel K SPMP 5/20/2019 8/15/2019
City of Orlando Mass Grading (Parcel K) 12/13/2019 1/30/2020
SFWMD ERP (Mass Grading) 12/17/2019 3/5/2020
Gopher Tortoise Relocation Permit (FWC)

SFWD wWupP Dewaterigg_ 2/21/2020 3/31/2020
Parcel K Phase 1 (160 Residential Units)

City of Orlando Construction Plans 1/24/2020 8/22/2020
City of Orlando Plat 6/10/2020

Orange county Utilities 1/24/2020 8/21/2020
FDEP Water 8/18/2020 9/3/2020
FDEP Sewer 8/18/2020 9/2/2020
SFWMD ERP 1/24/2020 6/24/2020
Parcel K Phase 2 (197 Residential Units)

City of Orlando Construction Plans 11/5/2020

City of Orlando Plat TBD

Orange county Utilities 10/30/2020

FDEP Water TBD

FDEP Sewer T8D

SFWMD ERP 10/30/2020

Parcel K Phase 3 (231 Residential Units)

City of Orlando Construction Plans 1/22/2021

City of Orlando Plat 18D

Orange county Utilities 1/22/2021

FDEP Water TBD

FDEP Sewer TBD

SFWMD ERP 1/22/2021
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1.0

Introduction

The Storey Park Community Development District (the “District”) is a local unit of special-purpose
government organized and existing under Chapter 190, Florida Statutes as amended. The District
has issued its $6,030,000 of tax exempt bonds (the “Bonds”) for the purpose of financing certain
Assessment Area Four infrastructure improvements (“Assessment Area Four Project”) within a
designated assessment area (herein the “Assessment Area Four”) within the District more
specifically described in the Engineer’s Report Revision 7 - Parcel K Boundary Expansion dated
February 22, 2021 prepared by Poulos & Bennett, as may be amended and supplemented from time
to time (the “Engineer’'s Report”). The construction and/or acquisition of a portion of the
Assessment Area Four Project shall provide special benefit to property owners within the
Assessment Area Four. Assessment Area Four is identified as Parcel K Phase 1 and Parcel K Phase
2 in Exhibit 17 of the Engineer’s Report.

11  Purpose

This Supplemental Assessment Methodology for Assessment Area Four (the
“Supplemental Report”) which supplements the certain Master Assessment Methodology
for Assessment Area Four dated February 25, 2021 (the “Master Report”) and together with
the Supplemental Report (the “Assessment Report”), provides for an assessment
methodology that allocates the debt to be incurred by the District to benefiting properties
within Assessment Area Four. This Assessment Report allocates the debt to properties
based on the special benefits each receives from the Assessment Area Four Project. This
Assessment Report is designed to conform to the requirements of Chapters 190 and 170,
Florida Statutes with respect to special assessments and is consistent with our
understanding of case law on this subject.

The District intends to impose non ad valorem special assessments on the benefited lands
within Assessment Area Four based on the Assessment Report. It is anticipated that all of
the proposed special assessments will be collected through the Uniform Method of
Collection described in Chapter 197.3632, Florida Statutes or any other legal means
available to the District. It is not the intent of this Assessment Report to address any other
assessments, if applicable, that may be levied by the District, a homeowner’s association,
or any other unit of government.

12  Background

The District currently includes approximately 993.3 acres in the City of Orlando, Orange
County, Florida, of which Assessment Area Four represents approximately 101 acres. The
development program for Assessment Area Four currently envisions approximately 357
residential units. The proposed development program is depicted in Table 1. It is
identified in the Engineer’s Report as Parcel K. It is recognized that such land use plan may
change, and this Assessment Report will be modified or supplemented accordingly.

The improvements contemplated by the District in the Assessment Area Four Project will
provide facilities that benefit certain property within the Assessment Area Four.
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Specifically, the District will construct and/or acquire certain master roadway and alley
facilities, master stormwater facilities, earthwork, potable water distribution facilities,
reclaimed water distribution facilities, sanitary sewer system facilities, offsite
improvements, master signage, trails, differential cost of undergrounding electrical
utilities and landscaping and hardscaping. The acquisition and construction costs are
summarized in Table 2

The assessment methodology is a four-step process.

1. The District Engineer must first determine the public infrastructure
improvements that may be provided by the District and the costs to
implement the Capital Improvement Plan.

2. 'The District Engineer determines the assessable acres that benefit from the
District’s Capital Improvement Plan.

3. A calculation is made to determine the funding amounts necessary to
acquire and/or construct a portion of the Assessment Area Four Project.

4. This amount is initially divided equally among the benefited properties
on a prorated assessable acreage basis. Ultimately, as land is platted, this
amount will be assigned to each of the benefited properties based on the
number of platted units.

Special Benefits and General Benefits

Improvements undertaken by the District create special and peculiar benefits to the
property within Assessment Area Four, different in kind and degree than general
benefits, for properties within its borders outside of Assessment Area Four as well as
general benefits to the public at large.

However, as discussed within the Assessment Report, these general benefits are
incidental in nature and are readily distinguishable from the ‘special and peculiar
benefits, which accrue to property within Assessment Area Four. The implementation
of the Assessment Area Four Project enables properties within the boundaries of the
Assessment Area Four to be developed. Without the District's Assessment Area Four
Project, there would be no infrastructure to support development of land within
Assessment Area Four. Without these improvements, development of the property
within Assessment Area Four would be prohibited by law.

There is no doubt that the general public and property owners outside of Assessment
Area Four and outside of the District will benefit from the provision of the Assessment
Area Four Project. However, these benefits will be incidental for the purpose of the
Assessment Area Four Project, which is designed solely to meet the needs of property
within the Assessment Area Four. Properties outside of Assessment Area Four and
outside of the District boundaries do not depend upon the District's Assessment Area
Four Project. The property owners within Assessment Area Four are therefore
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receiving special benefits not received by those outside the District's boundaries and
outside of the Assessment Area Four.

Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology
There are two requirements under Florida law for a valid special assessment:

1) The properties must receive a special benefit from the improvements being
paid for.

2) The assessments must be fairly and reasonably allocated to the properties
being assessed based on the special benefit such properties receive.

Florida law provides for a wide application of special assessments that meet these
two characteristics of special assessments.

Special Benefits Exceed the Costs Allocated

The special benefits provided to the property owners within Assessment Area Four
will be greater than the costs associated with providing these benefits. The District
Engineer estimates that the District's Assessment Area Four Project that is necessary
to support full development of property within Assessment Area Four will cost
approximately $13,630,190. The District’s Underwriter projects that financing costs
required to fund a portion of the Assessment Area Four Project costs, the cost of
issuance of the Bonds, the funding of a debt service reserve account and capitalized
interest, is $6,030,000. Additional funding required to complete the Assessment Area
Four Project is anticipated to be funded by Developer. Without the Assessment Area
Four Project, the property within Assessment Area Four would not be able to be
developed and occupied by future residents of the community.

2.0  Assessment Methodology

21

Overview

The District shall issue its $6,030,000 in Bonds to fund a portion of the District’s
Assessment Area Four Project, provide for capitalized interest, a debt service reserve
account and pay cost of issuance. It is the purpose of this Assessment Report to
allocate the $6,030,000 in debt to the properties within Assessment Area Four
benefiting from the Assessment Area Four Project. It is anticipated that the District will
issue less than the full cost to complete the Assessment Area Four Project.

Table 1 identifies the land uses as identified by the Developer within Assessment Area
Four. The District has commissioned an Engineer’s Report that includes estimated
construction costs for the Assessment Area Four Project needed to support the
development, which these construction costs are outlined in Table 2. The
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improvements needed to support the development are described in detail in the
Engineer’s Report and are estimated to cost $13,630,190. Based on the estimated costs,
the size of the bond issue under current market conditions needed to generate funds
to pay for a portion of the Assessment Area Four Project and related costs was
determined by the District’s Underwriter to total $6,030,000. Table 3 shows the
breakdown of the bond sizing.

Allocation of Debt

Allocation of debt is a continuous process until the development plan for the
Assessment Area Four is completed. Until the platting process occurs, the Assessment
Area Four Project funded by District bonds benefits all platted lots and remaining
developable acres within Assessment Area Four.

The initial assessments will be levied on an equal basis to all platted lots first, then
gross acreage within remaining properties of Assessment Area Four. A fair and
reasonable methodology allocates the debt incurred by the District proportionately to
the properties receiving the special benefits. At this point all of the lands within
Assessment Area Four are benefiting from the improvements represented by the
Assessment Area Four Project.

Once platting or the recording of a declaration of condominium of any portion of
Assessment Area Four into individual lots or units (“ Assigned Properties”) has begun,
the assessments will be levied to the Assigned Properties based on the benefits they
receive, on a first platted, first assigned basis. The “Unassigned Properties” defined
as property that has not been platted or subjected to a declaration of condominium,
will continue to be assessed on a per acre basis. Eventually the development plan will
be completed and the debt relating to the bonds will be allocated to the platted units
within the Assessment Area Four, which are the beneficiaries of the Assessment Area
Four Project, as depicted in Table 5 and Table 6. If there are changes to development
plan, a true up of the assessment will be calculated to determine if a debt reduction or
true-up payment from the Developer is required. The process is outlined in Section
3.0.

The assignment of debt in this Supplemental Report sets forth the process by which
debt is apportioned. As mentioned herein, this Supplemental Report may be
supplemented from time to time.

Allocation of Benefit

The Assessment Area Four Project consists of stormwater management system, master
roadway, water, sewer, reuse and undergrounding of dry utilities improvements,
parks and recreational facilities, landscaping and certain master roadway and alley
facilities, master stormwater facilities, earthwork, potable water distribution facilities,
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reclaimed water distribution facilities, sanitary sewer system facilities, off-site
improvements, master signage, trails, differential cost of undergrounding of electrical
utilities, and landscaping and hardscaping and professional fees along with related
incidental costs. There are currently five product types within the planned
development within Assessment Area Four. The single family 50 home has been set
as the base unit and has been assigned one equivalent residential unit (“ERU"). Table
4 shows the allocation of benefit to the particular land uses. It is important to note that
the benefit derived from the improvements on the particular units exceeds the cost
that the units will be paying for such benefits.

Lienability Test: Special and Peculiar Benefit to the Property

Construction and/or acquisition by the District of its proposed Assessment Area Four
Project will provide several types of systems, facilities and services for its residents.
These include master roadway and alley facilities, master stormwater facilities,
earthwork, potable water distribution facilities, reclaimed water distribution facilities,
sanitary sewer system facilities, off-site improvements, master signage, trails, differential
cost of undergrounding of electrical utilities and landscaping and hardscaping. These
improvements accrue in differing amounts and are somewhat dependent on the type
of land use receiving the special benefits peculiar to those properties, which flow from
the logical relationship of the improvements to the properties.

Once these determinations are made, they are reviewed in the light of the special
benefits peculiar to the property, which flow to the properties as a result of their logical
connection from the improvements in fact actually provided.

For the provision of the Assessment Area Four Project, the special and peculiar benefits
are:

1) the added use of the property,

2) added enjoyment of the property, and

3) the probability of increased marketability and value of the property.

These special and peculiar benefits are real and ascertainable, but are not yet capable
of being calculated as to value with mathematical certainty. However, each is more
valuable than either the cost of, or the actual non-ad valorem special assessment levied
for the improvement or the debt as allocated.

Lienability Test: Reasonable and Fair Apportionment of the Duty to Pay
Non-Ad Valorem Assessments

A reasonable estimate of the proportion of special and peculiar benefits received from
the public improvements described in the Engineer’s Report is delineated in Table 5
(expressed as Allocation of Par Debt per Product Type). This is also shown on Table 7
depicting Allocation of Par Debt per Product Type.



The determination has been made that the duty to pay the non-ad valorem special
assessments is fairly and reasonably apportioned because the special and peculiar
benefits to the property derived from the acquisition and/or construction of
Assessment Area Four Project have been apportioned to the property within
Assessment Area Four according to reasonable estimates of the special and peculiar
benefits provided consistent with the land use categories.

Accordingly, no acre or parcel of property within the boundaries of Assessment Area
Four will have a lien for the payment of any non-ad valorem special assessment more
than the determined special benefit peculiar to that property and therefore, the debt
allocation will not be increased more than the debt allocation set forth in this
Assessment Report.

In accordance with the benefit allocation described for the product types in Table 4, a
total debt per unit and an annual assessment per unit have been calculated for each
product type (Table 6). These amounts represent the preliminary anticipated per unit
debt allocation assuming all anticipated units are built and sold as planned, and the
portion of Assessment Area Four Project is constructed as planned.

3.0 True Up Mechanism

Although the District does not process plats, declaration of condominiums, site plans
or revisions thereto for the developer, it does have an important role to play during
the course of platting and site planning. Whenever a plat, declaration of condominium
or site plan is processed, the District must allocate a portion of its debt to the property
according to this Supplemental Report outlined herein. In addition, the District must
also prevent any buildup of debt on Unassigned Properties. Otherwise, the land could
be fully conveyed and/ or platted without all of the debt being allocated. To preclude
this, when platting for 25%, 50%, 75% and 100% of the units planned for platting has
occurred within Assessment Area Four, the District will determine the amount of
anticipated assessment revenue that remains on the Unassigned Properties, taking
into account the full development plan of Assessment Area Four. If the total
anticipated assessment revenue to be generated from the Assigned and Unassigned
Properties is greater than or equal to the maximum annual debt service then no debt
reduction or true-up payment is required. In the case that the revenue generated is
less then the required amount then a debt reduction or true-up payment by the
landowner in the amount necessary to reduce the par amount of the outstanding
bonds plus accrued interest to a level that will be supported by the new net annual
debt service assessments will be required.

If a true-up payment is made less than 45 days prior to an interest payment date, the
amount of accrued interest will be calculated to the next succeeding interest payment
date.



4.0 Assessment Roll

The District will initially distribute the liens across the property within Assessment
Area Four boundaries on a gross acreage basis. As Assigned Properties becomes
known with certainty, the District will refine its allocation of debt from a per acre basis
to a per unit basis as shown in Table 6. If the land use plan changes, then the District
will update Table 6 to reflect the changes as part of the foregoing true-up process. As
aresult, the assessment liens are neither fixed nor are they determinable with certainty
on any acre of land in the District prior to the time final Assigned Properties become
known. The current assessment roll is attached as Table 7.
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SECTION V



RESOLUTION 2021-16

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND CONFIRMING AND RE-
AUTHORIZING AND RE-CONFIRMING THE ASSESSMENT AREA
FOUR PROJECT; EQUALIZING, APPROVING, AND LEVYING
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS ON PROPERTY SPECIALLY BENEFITED BY
SUCH ASSESSMENT AREA FOUR PROJECT TO PAY THE COSTS
THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT AND THE COLLECTION
OF SUCH SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS BY THE METHOD PROVIDED FOR
BY CHAPTERS 170, 190 AND 197, FLORIDA STATUTES; CONFIRMING
THE DISTRICT’S INTENTION TO ISSUE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT
REVENUE BONDS; MAKING PROVISIONS FOR TRANSFERS OF REAL
PROPERTY TO GOVERNMENTAL BODIES; PROVIDING FOR
RECORDING OF AN ASSESSMENT NOTICE; AND PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE STOREY
PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. AUTHORITY FOR THIS RESOLUTION. This Resolution is adopted
pursuant to Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida Statutes.

SECTION 2. DISTRICT AUTHORITY AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS.

A. The Storey Park Community Development District (“District”) is a local unit of
special-purpose government organized and existing under Chapter 190, Florida Statutes.

B. The District is authorized under Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, to construct roads,
water management and control facilities, water and wastewater systems and other public
infrastructure projects to serve lands within the District.

C. The District adopted the Storey Park Community Development District Engineer's
Report, Revision 7 — Parcel K Boundary Expansion, dated February 22, 2021 (the “Engineer’s
Report”) describing the capital improvement program to be constructed and/or acquired by the
District (the “Assessment Area Four Project”).

D. The District is authorized by Chapter 170, Florida Statutes, to levy special
assessments to pay all, or any part of, the cost of the Assessment Area Four Project and to issue
special assessment revenue bonds payable from such special assessments as provided in Chapters
190 and 170, Florida Statutes.

E. The District previously levied assessments on certain property via Resolution 2021 -
13. The legal description of a portion of the property on which the assessments were levied has
changed slightly. This declaration of assessments is intended to re-levy and confirm the
assessments previously levied by Resolution 2021-13 and is intended to declare assessments on
any lands included in the new legal description.

Resolution 2021-16 Levy of Assessments
Storey Park Community Development District
Series 2021 Bonds — Assessment Area Four Project



SECTION 3. FINDINGS. The District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) hereby finds
and determines as follows:

A, It is necessary to the public safety and welfare, and to comply with applicable
governmental requirements, that (i) the District provide the Assessment Area Four Project, the
nature and location of which is described in the Engineer’s Report and the plans and specifications
on file at the District Manager’s office at 219 E. Livingston Street, Orlando, Florida 32801; (ii)
the cost of such Assessment Arca Four Project be assessed against the lands specially benefited by
such projects; and (iii) the District issue bonds to provide funds for such purposes, pending the
receipt of such special assessments.

B. The provisions of said infrastructure projects, the levying of such special
assessments and the sale and issuance of such bonds serves a proper, essential and valid public

purpose.

C. In order to provide funds with which to pay the costs of the Assessment Area Four
Project which are to be assessed against the benefited properties, pending the collection of such
special assessments, it is necessary for the District to sell and issue its not-to-exceed $7,000,000
Storey Park Community Development District Special Assessment Revenue Bonds in one or more
series (“Bonds™).

D. In Resolution 2021-07, the Board determined to provide the Assessment Area Four
Project and to defray the cost thereof by making special assessments on benefited property and
expressed an intention to issue the Bonds to provide the funds needed for the Assessment Area
Four Project prior to the collection of such special assessments. Resolution 2021-07 was adopted
in compliance with the requirements of Section 170.03, Florida Statutes, and prior to the time the
same was adopted, the requirements of Section 170.04, Florida Statutes had been complied with.

E. As directed by Resolution 2021-07 said resolution was published as required by
Section 170.05, Florida Statutes, and a copy of the publisher’s affidavit of publication is on file
with the District Manager.

F. As directed by Resolution 2021-07, a preliminary assessment roll was prepared and
filed with the Board as required by Section 170.06, Florida Statutes.

G. The Board, by Resolution 2021-07, and as ratified today, adopted the Master
Assessment Methodology for Assessment Area Four for Storey Park Community Development
District, dated February 25, 2021, as supplemented by the Supplemental Assessment Methodology
Jor Assessment Area Four for Storey Park Community Development District, dated April 22,2021,
as revised by the Supplemental Assessment Methodology for Assessment Area Four for Storey
Park Community Development District, dated June 24, 2021 (collectively the “Assessment
Methodology”), attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A”.

H. The Board, by Resolution 2021-07, and as ratified today, approved the Engineer’s
Report.

Resolution 2021-16 Levy of Assessments
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L As required by Section 170.07, Florida Statutes, upon completion of the
preliminary assessment roll, the Board adopted Resolution 2021-08 fixing the time and place ofa
public hearing at which owners of the property to be assessed and other persons interested therein
may appear before the Board and be heard as to (i) the propriety and advisability of making the
improvements, (ii) the cost thereof, (iii) the manner of payment therefor, and (iv) the amount
thereof to be assessed against each parcel of specially benefited property and providing for the
mailing and publication of notice of such public hearing.

J. Notice of such public hearing has been given by publication and by delivery as
required by Section 170.07, Florida Statutes, and affidavits as to such publication and delivery are
on file in the office of the Secretary of the Board.

K. At the time and place specified in the resolution and notice referred to in paragraph
(1) above, the Board met as an Equalization Board, conducted such public hearing and heard and
considered all complaints as to the matters described in paragraph (I) above and, based thereon,
has made such modifications (if any) in the preliminary assessment roll as it deems desirable at
this time.

L. Having considered any revised costs of the Assessment Area Four Project, any
revised estimates of financing costs and all complaints and evidence presented at such public
hearing, the Board of Supervisors of the District finds and determines:

(i) that the estimated costs of the Assessment Area Four Project are as specified
in the Engineer’s Report, and the amount of such costs is reasonable and proper;
and

(i) that it is reasonable, proper, just and right to assess the cost of such
Assessment Area Four Project against the properties specially benefited thereby
using the methods determined by the Board as set forth in the Assessment
Methodology, which result in special assessments set forth on an assessment roll
contained in the Assessment Methodology and herein adopted by the Board, and
which roll will be supplemented and amended by the Board when properties are
platted and when final project costs, structure and interest rate on the Bonds to be
issued by the District are established; and

(iii) that the Assessment Area Four Project will constitute a special benefit to all
parcels of real property listed on said assessment roll and that the benefit, in the
case of each such parcel, will be in excess of the special assessment thereon; and

(iv) it is reasonable, proper, just and right for the District to utilize the true-up
mechanisms and calculations contained in the Assessment Methodology in order to
ensure that all parcels of real property benefiting from the Assessment Area Four
Project are assessed accordingly and that sufficient assessment receipts are being
generated in order to pay the corresponding bond debt-service when due; and
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(v) it is desirable that the special assessments be paid and collected as herein
provided.

SECTION 4. AUTHORIZATION OF THE ASSESSMENT AREA FOUR
PROJECT. The Assessment Area Four Project, as more specifically described by the Engineer’s
Report and the plans and specifications on file with the District Manager, are hereby confirmed,
authorized and approved and the proper officers, employees and agents of the District are hereby
authorized and directed to take such further action as may be necessary or desirable to cause the
same to be made following the issuance of the Bonds.

SECTION 5. ESTIMATED COST OF IMPROVEMENTS. The total estimated costs
of the Assessment Area Four Project, and the costs to be paid by special assessments on all
specially benefited property, are set forth in Exhibit “A”.

SECTION 6. APPROVAL AND CONFIRMATION OF ASSESSMENT
METHODOLOGY. The Assessment Methodology is hereby adopted, approved and confirmed
by the Board acting in its capacity as an Equalization Board. The special assessment or assessments
against each respective parcel to be shown on the assessment roll and interest and penalties thereon,
as hereafter provided, shall be and shall remain a legal, valid and binding first lien on such parcel
until paid; such lien shall be co-equal with the lien of all state, county, district, municipal or other
governmental taxes and superior in dignity to all other liens, titles, and claims.

SECTION 7. FINALIZATION OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS. When all of the
Assessment Area Four Project has been constructed or otherwise provided to the satisfaction of
the Board, the Board shall adopt a resolution accepting the same and determining the actual costs
(including financing costs) thereof, as required by Sections 170.08 and 170.09, Florida Statutes.
The District shall credit to each special assessment for the Assessment Area Four Project the
difference between the special assessment as hereby made, approved and confirmed and the
proportionate part of the actual costs of the projects, as finally determined upon completion
thereof, but in no event shall the final amount of any such special assessment exceed the amount
of benefits originally assessed hereunder. In making such credits, no discount shall be granted or
credit given for any part of the payee’s proportionate share of any actual bond financing costs,
such as capitalized interest, funded reserves or bond discount included in the estimated cost of any
such improvements. Such credits, if any, shall be entered in the District’s Improvement Lien Book.
Once the final amount of special assessments for all of the Assessment Area Four Project
improvements have been determined, the term “special assessment” shall, with respect to each
benefited parcel, mean the sum of the costs of the Assessment Area Four Project.

SECTION 8. PAYMENT AND PREPAYMENT OF NON-AD VALOREM
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AND METHOD OF COLLECTION.

A. All non-ad valorem special assessments shall be payable in no more than thirty (30)
annual installments which shall include interest (excluding any capitalized interest period),
calculated in accordance with the Assessment Methodology. All special assessments collected
utilizing the uniform method of collection shall be levied in the amount determined in the first
sentence of this paragraph divided by 1 minus the sum of the percentage cost of collection,
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necessary administrative costs and the maximum allowable discount for the early payment of taxes
(currently a total of four percent (4%), as may be amended from time to time by Orange County
and by changes to Florida Statutes and implementing regulations, if any).

B. The District hereby may elect, under its charter and Section 197.3631, Florida
Statutes, to use the method of collecting special assessments authorized by Sections 197.3632 and
197.3635, Florida Statutes. The District has heretofore timely taken, or will timely take, all
necessary actions to comply with the provisions of said Sections 197.3632 and 197.3635, Florida
Statutes, and applicable rules adopted pursuant thereto to elect to use this method; and, if required,
the District shall enter into a written agreement with the Property Appraiser and/or Tax Collector
of Orange County in compliance therewith. Such non-ad valorem special assessments shall be
subject to all of the collection provisions of Chapter 197, Florida Statutes.

C. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the District reserves the right under Section
197.3631, Florida Statutes, to collect its non-ad valorem special assessments pursuant to Chapter
170, Florida Statutes, and to foreclose its non-ad valorem special assessment liens as provided for
by law.

D. All special assessments may be prepaid in whole or in part at any time by payment
of an amount equal to the principal amount of such prepayment plus interest accrued at the interest
rate on the Bonds and in the amount sufficient to pay interest on the Bonds on the next interest
payment date which occurs at least 45 days after such prepayment and to the next succeeding
interest payment date if such prepayment is less than 45 days from the next interest payment date.
All special assessments are also subject to prepayment in the amounts and at the times set forth in
Chapter 170, Florida Statutes; provided, however, that the owner of land subject to special
assessments may elect to waive such statutory right of prepayment.

SECTION 9. GOVERNMENT PROPERTY; TRANSFERS OF PROPERTY TO
UNITS OF LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL GOVERNMENT. Property owned by units of
local, state, and federal government shall not be subject to the special assessments without specific
consent thereto. In addition, property owned by a property owners’ association or homeowner’s
association that is exempt from special assessments under Florida law shall not be subject to the
special assessments. If at any time, any real property on which special assessments are imposed
by this Resolution is sold or otherwise transferred to a unit of local, state, or federal government
(without consent of such governmental unit to the imposition of special assessments thereon), all
future unpaid special assessments for such tax parcel shall become due and payable immediately
prior to such transfer without any further action of the District.

SECTION 10. ASSESSMENT NOTICE. The District Manager is hereby directed to
record a general Notice of Assessments in the Official Records of Orange County, Florida, which
shall be updated from time to time in a manner consistent with changes in the boundaries of the
District.

SECTION 11. SEVERABILITY. If any section or part of a section of this resolution be
declared invalid or unconstitutional, the validity, force and effect of any other section or part of a
section of this resolution shall not thereby be affected or impaired unless it clearly appears that
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such other section or part of a section of this resolution is wholly or necessarily dependent upon
the section or part of a section so held to be invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION 12. CONFLICTS. All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to
the extent of such conflict, superseded and repealed.

SECTION 13. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall become effective upon its
adoption.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of June, 2021.

ATTEST: BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE
STOREY PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a Florida
community development district

By: By:

Name: Name:
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman
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EXHIBIT “A”

ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

Supplemental Assessment Methodology for Assessment Area Four for Storey Park Community
Development District, dated April 22, 2021, as revised by the Supplemental Assessment
Methodology for Assessment Area Four for Storey Park Community Development District,
dated June 24, 2021

[See attached.]
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SUPPLEMENTAL
ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

FOR ASSESSMENT AREA FOUR

FOR

STOREY PARK

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Date: June 24, 2021

Prepared by

Governmental Management Services - Central Florida, LLC
219 E. Livingston St.
Orlando, FL 32801
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1.0

Introduction

The Storey Park Community Development District (the “ District”) is a local unit of special-purpose
government organized and existing under Chapter 190, Florida Statutes as amended. The District
has issued its $6,030,000 of tax exempt bonds (the “Bonds”) for the purpose of financing certain
Assessment Area Four infrastructure improvements (“Assessment Area Four Project”) within a
designated assessment area (herein the “Assessment Area Four”) within the District more
specifically described in the Engineer’s Report Revision 7 ~ Parcel K Boundary Expansion dated
February 22, 2021 prepared by Poulos & Bennett, as may be amended and supplemented from time
to time (the “Engineer’s Report”). The construction and/or acquisition of a portion of the
Assessment Area Four Project shall provide special benefit to property owners within the
Assessment Area Four. Assessment Area Four is identified as Parcel K Phase 1 and Parcel K Phase
2 in Exhibit 17 of the Engineer’s Report.

11  Purpose

This Supplemental Assessment Methodology for Assessment Area Four (the
“Supplemental Report”) which supplements the certain Master Assessment Methodology
for Assessment Area Four dated February 25, 2021 (the “Master Report”) and together with
the Supplemental Report (the “Assessment Report”), provides for an assessment
methodology that allocates the debt to be incurred by the District to benefiting properties
within Assessment Area Four. This Assessment Report allocates the debt to properties
based on the special benefits each receives from the Assessment Area Four Project. This
Assessment Report is designed to conform to the requirements of Chapters 190 and 170,
Florida Statutes with respect to special assessments and is consistent with our
understanding of case law on this subject.

The District intends to impose non ad valorem special assessments on the benefited lands
within Assessment Area Four based on the Assessment Report. 1t is anticipated that all of
the proposed special assessments will be collected through the Uniform Method of
Collection described in Chapter 197.3632, Florida Statutes or any other legal means
available to the District. It is not the intent of this Assessment Report to address any other
assessments, if applicable, that may be levied by the District, a homeowner’s association,
or any other unit of government.

1.2  Background

The District currently includes approximately 993.3 acres in the City of Orlando, Orange
County, Florida, of which Assessment Area Four represents approximately 101 acres. The
development program for Assessment Area Four currently envisions approximately 357
residential units. The proposed development program is depicted in Table 1. It is
identified in the Engineer’s Report as Parcel K. It is recognized that such land use plan may
change, and this Assessment Report will be modified or supplemented accordingly.

The improvements contemplated by the District in the Assessment Area Four Project will
provide facilities that benefit certain property within the Assessment Area Four.
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Specifically, the District will construct and/or acquire certain master roadway and alley
facilities, master stormwater facilities, earthwork, potable water distribution facilities,
reclaimed water distribution facilities, sanitary sewer system facilities, offsite
improvements, master signage, trails, differential cost of undergrounding electrical
utilities and landscaping and hardscaping. The acquisition and construction costs are
summarized in Table 2.

The assessment methodology is a four-step process.

1. The District Engineer must first determine the public infrastructure
improvements that may be provided by the District and the costs to
implement the Capital Improvement Plan.

2. The District Engineer determines the assessable acres that benefit from the
District’s Capital Improvement Plan.

3. A calculation is made to determine the funding amounts necessary to
acquire and/ or construct a portion of the Assessment Area Four Project.

4. This amount is initially divided equally among the benefited properties
on a prorated assessable acreage basis. Ultimately, as land is platted, this
amount will be assigned to each of the benefited properties based on the
number of platted units.

Special Benefits and General Benefits

Improvements undertaken by the District create special and peculiar benefits to the
property within Assessment Area Four, different in kind and degree than general
benefits, for properties within its borders outside of Assessment Area Four as well as
general benefits to the public at large.

However, as discussed within the Assessment Report, these general benefits are
incidental in nature and are readily distinguishable from the special and peculiar
benefits, which accrue to property within Assessment Area Four. The implementation
of the Assessment Area Four Project enables properties within the boundaries of the
Assessment Area Four to be developed. Without the District's Assessment Area Four
Project, there would be no infrastructure to support development of land within
Assessment Area Four. Without these improvements, development of the property
within Assessment Area Four would be prohibited by law.

There is no doubt that the general public and property owners outside of Assessment
Area Four and outside of the District will benefit from the provision of the Assessment
Area Four Project. However, these benefits will be incidental for the purpose of the
Assessment Area Four Project, which is designed solely to meet the needs of property
within the Assessment Area Four. Properties outside of Assessment Area Four and
outside of the District boundaries do not depend upon the District's Assessment Area
Four Project. The property owners within Assessment Area Four are therefore
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receiving special benefits not received by those outside the District’s boundaries and
outside of the Assessment Area Four.

Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology
There are two requirements under Florida law for a valid special assessment:

1) The properties must receive a special benefit from the improvements being
paid for.

2) The assessments must be fairly and reasonably allocated to the properties
being assessed based on the special benefit such properties receive.

Florida law provides for a wide application of special assessments that meet these
two characteristics of special assessments,

Special Benefits Exceed the Costs Allocated

The special benefits provided to the property owners within Assessment Area Four
will be greater than the costs associated with providing these benefits. The District
Engineer estimates that the District’'s Assessment Area Four Project that is necessary
to support full development of property within Assessment Area Four will cost
approximately $13,630,190. The District’s Underwriter projects that financing costs
required to fund a portion of the Assessment Area Four Project costs, the cost of
issuance of the Bonds, the funding of a debt service reserve account and capitalized
interest, is $6,030,000. Additional funding required to complete the Assessment Area
Four Project is anticipated to be funded by Developer. Without the Assessment Area
Four Project, the property within Assessment Area Four would not be able to be
developed and occupied by future residents of the community.

2.0  Assessment Methodology

21

Overview

The District shall issue its $6,030,000 in Bonds to fund a portion of the District’s
Assessment Area Four Project, provide for capitalized interest, a debt service reserve
account and pay cost of issuance. It is the purpose of this Assessment Report to
allocate the $6,030,000 in debt to the properties within Assessment Area Four
benefiting from the Assessment Area Four Project. It is anticipated that the District will
issue less than the full cost to complete the Assessment Area Four Project.

Table 1 identifies the land uses as identified by the Developer within Assessment Area
Four. The District has commissioned an Engineer’s Report that includes estimated
construction costs for the Assessment Area Four Project needed to support the
development, which these construction costs are outlined in Table 2. The
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improvements needed to support the development are described in detail in the
Engineer’s Report and are estimated to cost $13,630,190. Based on the estimated costs,
the size of the bond issue under current market conditions needed to generate funds
to pay for a portion of the Assessment Area Four Project and related costs was
determined by the District’s Underwriter to total $6,030,000. Table 3 shows the
breakdown of the bond sizing.

Allocation of Debt

Allocation of debt is a continuous process until the development plan for the
Assessment Area Four is completed. Until the platting process occurs, the Assessment
Area Four Project funded by District bonds benefits all platted lots and remaining
developable acres within Assessment Area Four.

The initial assessments will be levied on an equal basis to all platted lots first, then
gross acreage within remaining properties of Assessment Area Four. A fair and
reasonable methodology allocates the debt incurred by the District proportionately to
the properties receiving the special benefits. At this point all of the lands within
Assessment Area Four are benefiting from the improvements represented by the
Assessment Area Four Project.

Once platting or the recording of a declaration of condominium of any portion of
Assessment Area Four into individual lots or units (“Assigned Properties”) has begun,
the assessments will be levied to the Assigned Properties based on the benefits they
receive, on a first platted, first assigned basis. The “Unassigned Properties” defined
as property that has not been platted or subjected to a declaration of condominium,
will continue to be assessed on a per acre basis. Eventually the development plan will
be completed and the debt relating to the bonds will be allocated to the platted units
within the Assessment Area Four, which are the beneficiaries of the Assessment Area
Four Project, as depicted in Table 5 and Table 6. If there are changes to development
plan, a true up of the assessment will be calculated to determine if a debt reduction or
true-up payment from the Developer is required. The process is outlined in Section
3.0.

The assignment of debt in this Supplemental Report sets forth the process by which
debt is apportioned. As mentioned herein, this Supplemental Report may be
supplemented from time to time.

Allocation of Benefit

The Assessment Area Four Project consists of stormwater management system, master
roadway, water, sewer, reuse and undergrounding of dry utilities improvements,
parks and recreational facilities, landscaping and certain master roadway and alley
facilities, master stormwater facilities, earthwork, potable water distribution facilities,
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reclaimed water distribution facilities, sanitary sewer system facilities, off-site
improvements, master signage, trails, differential cost of undergrounding of electrical
utilities, and landscaping and hardscaping and professional fees along with related
incidental costs. There are currently five product types within the planned
development within Assessment Area Four. The single family 50’ home has been set
as the base unit and has been assigned one equivalent residential unit (“ERU”). Table
4 shows the allocation of benefit to the particular land uses. It is important to note that
the benefit derived from the improvements on the particular units exceeds the cost
that the units will be paying for such benefits.

Lienability Test: Special and Peculiar Benefit to the Property

Construction and/ or acquisition by the District of its proposed Assessment Area Four
Project will provide several types of systems, facilities and services for its residents.
These include master roadway and alley facilities, master stormwater facilities,
earthwork, potable water distribution facilities, reclaimed water distribution facilities,
sanitary sewer system facilities, off-site improvements, master signage, trails, differential
cost of undergrounding of electrical utilities and landscaping and hardscaping. These
improvements accrue in differing amounts and are somewhat dependent on the type
of land use receiving the special benefits peculiar to those properties, which flow from
the logical relationship of the improvements to the properties.

Once these determinations are made, they are reviewed in the light of the special
benefits peculiar to the property, which flow to the properties as a result of their logical
connection from the improvements in fact actually provided.

For the provision of the Assessment Area Four Project, the special and peculiar benefits
are:

1) the added use of the property,

2) added enjoyment of the property, and

3) the probability of increased marketability and value of the property.

These special and peculiar benefits are real and ascertainable, but are not yet capable
of being calculated as to value with mathematical certainty. However, each is more
valuable than either the cost of, or the actual non-ad valorem special assessment levied
for the improvement or the debt as allocated.

Lienability Test: Reasonable and Fair Apportionment of the Duty to Pay
Non-Ad Valorem Assessments

A reasonable estimate of the proportion of special and peculiar benefits received from
the public improvements described in the Engineer’s Report is delineated in Table 5
(expressed as Allocation of Par Debt per Product Type). This is also shown on Table 7
depicting Allocation of Par Debt per Product Type.



The determination has been made that the duty to pay the non-ad valorem special
assessments is fairly and reasonably apportioned because the special and peculiar
benefits to the property derived from the acquisition and/or construction of
Assessment Area Four Project have been apportioned to the property within
Assessment Area Four according to reasonable estimates of the special and peculiar
benefits provided consistent with the land use categories.

Accordingly, no acre or parcel of property within the boundaries of Assessment Area
Four will have a lien for the payment of any non-ad valorem special assessment more
than the determined special benefit peculiar to that property and therefore, the debt
allocation will not be increased more than the debt allocation set forth in this
Assessment Report.

In accordance with the benefit allocation described for the product types in Table 4, a
total debt per unit and an annual assessment per unit have been calculated for each
product type (Table 6). These amounts represent the preliminary anticipated per unit
debt allocation assuming all anticipated units are built and sold as planned, and the
portion of Assessment Area Four Project is constructed as planned.

3.0 True Up Mechanism

Although the District does not process plats, declaration of condominiums, site plans
or revisions thereto for the developer, it does have an important role to play during
the course of platting and site planning. Whenever a plat, declaration of condominium
or site plan is processed, the District must allocate a portion of its debt to the property
according to this Supplemental Report outlined herein. In addition, the District must
also prevent any buildup of debt on Unassigned Properties. Otherwise, the land could
be fully conveyed and/or platted without all of the debt being allocated. To preclude
this, when platting for 25%, 50%, 75% and 100% of the units planned for platting has
occurred within Assessment Area Four, the District will determine the amount of
anticipated assessment revenue that remains on the Unassigned Properties, taking
into account the full development plan of Assessment Area Four. If the total
anticipated assessment revenue to be generated from the Assigned and Unassigned
Properties is greater than or equal to the maximum annual debt service then no debt
reduction or true-up payment is required. In the case that the revenue generated is
less then the required amount then a debt reduction or true-up payment by the
landowner in the amount necessary to reduce the par amount of the outstanding
bonds plus accrued interest to a level that will be supported by the new net annual
debt service assessments will be required.

If a true-up payment is made less than 45 days prior to an interest payment date, the
amount of accrued interest will be calculated to the next succeeding interest payment
date.



4.0 Assessment Roll

The District will initially distribute the liens across the property within Assessment
Area Four boundaries on a gross acreage basis. As Assigned Properties becomes
known with certainty, the District will refine its allocation of debt from a per acre basis
to a per unit basis as shown in Table 6. If the land use plan changes, then the District
will update Table 6 to reflect the changes as part of the foregoing true-up process. As
aresult, the assessment liens are neither fixed nor are they determinable with certainty
on any acre of land in the District prior to the time final Assigned Properties become
known. The current assessment roll is attached as Table 7.
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A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 23 SOUTH, RANGE 31 EAST AND IN
SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 24 SOUTH, RANGE 31 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA,
INCLUDING ALL OF TRACT FD-K2 AND A PORTION OF TRACT FD-K3, STOREY PARK-
PARCEL K PHASE 1 ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 104,
PAGES 118 THROUGH 127 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA,
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF AFORESAID SECTION 4; THENCE RUN NORTH
89°54'04" WEST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 4 FOR
A DISTANCE OF 2330.04 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID TRACK FD-K3 AND
THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTH LINE RUN SOUTH 69° 24' 06"
WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE FOR A DISTANCE OF 44.07 FEET TO THE. POINT OF
CURVATURE OF A CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 10.00 FEET, WITH
A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 60° 17 24" WEST, AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 15.39 FEET;
THENCE RUN WESTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF
SAID STOREY PARK-PARCEL K PHASE 1 AND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 100° 37' 01" FOR A DISTANCE OF 17.56 FEET TO A POINT ON A NON
TANGENT LINE; THENCERUN ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE THE FOLLOWING COURSES:
SOUTH 80° 01' 06" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 52.00 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 09° 58' 54"
EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 13.50 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE,
CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 10.00 FEET, WITH. A CHORD BEARING
OF SOUTH 29° 42' 36" WEST, AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 12.77 FEET; THENCE RUN
SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 79°
22' 59" FOR A DISTANCE OF 13.85 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE RUN SOUTH 69°
24' 06" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 14.06 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID STOREY PARK-
PARCEL K PHASE 1; THENCE RUN ALONG SAID WEST LINE THE FOLLOWING COURSES:
SOUTH 20° 35' 54" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 55.00 FEET TO A POINT-ON A NON TANGENT
CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 10.00 FEET, WITH A CHORD BEARING
OF SOUTH 60° 17' 24" EAST, AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 15.39 FEET: THENCE RUN
SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 100°
37' 01" FOR A DISTANCE OF 17.56 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE RUN SOUTH
09° 58' 54" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 482.13 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A
CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 10.00 FEET, WITH A CHORD
BEARING OF SOUTH 31°09' 06" WEST, AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 13.16 FEET; THENCE RUN
SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A ‘CENTRAL ANGLE OF 82°
16' 00" FOR A DISTANCE OF 14.36 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE RUN SOUTH
72° 17' 06" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 242,20 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A
CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 10.00 FEET, WITH A CHORD
BEARING OF NORTH 58° 50' 54" WEST, AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 15.06 FEET: THENCE
RUN NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE
OF 97° 44' 00" FOR A DISTANCE OF 17.06 FEET TO A POINT ON A NON TANGENT LINE;
THENCE RUN SOUTH 80° 01' 06" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 60.00 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH
09° 58' 54" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 10.86 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE,
CONCAVE WESTERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 10.00 FEET, WITH A CHORD BEARING OF
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SOUTH 31° 09' 06" WEST, AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 13.16 FEET; THENCE RUN
SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF §2*
16' 00" FOR A DISTANCE OF 14.36 FEET TO A POINT ON A NON TANGENT LINE; THENCE RUN
SOUTH 17° 42' 54" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 55.00 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 72° 17' 06"
EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 136.54 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 17° 42' 54" EAST FOR A
DISTANCE OF 130,00 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 72° 17' 06" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 365.00
FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY HAVING A
RADIUS OF 207.64 FEET, WITH A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 82° 05' 26" WEST, AND A
CHORD DISTANCE OF 179.60 FEET; THENCE RUN WESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID
CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 51° 14' 56" FOR A DISTANCE OF 185.73 FEET TO A
POINT ON A NON TANGENT LINE; THENCE RUN NORTH 90° 00' 00" WEST FOR A DISTANCE
OF 92.46 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY LINE OF A PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED IN
DOCUMENT NUMBER 20200355298 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY,

FLORIDA; THENCE.RUN THE FOLLOWING COURSES ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE: NORTH
18° 52' 05" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 147.80 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 20° 07' 53" WEST
FOR A DISTANCE OF 146.55 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH. 13° 03' 16" WEST FOR A DISTANCE
OF 149.20 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 27° 20' 15" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 159.90 FEET;

THENCE RUN NORTH 21° 09' 32" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 112.59 FEET; THENCE RUN
NORTH 05° 47' 23" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 162.38 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 00° 19' 09"
WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 150.81 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 16° 44' 41" WEST FOR A
DISTANCE OF 152.03 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 07° 06' 25" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 89.96
FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 13° 57' 50" WEST FOR A. DISTANCE OF 124.65 FEET; THENCE RUN
NORTH 24° 30' 16" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 144.90 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 04° 19' 33"
EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 152.59 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 03° 16' 49" EAST FOR A
DISTANCE OF 130.72 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 22° 31' 47" EAST FOR. A DISTANCE OF 102.70
FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 12° 32' 22" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 111.23 FEET; THENCE RUN
NORTH 18° 47" 13" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 145.20 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 41° 58' (9"
WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 146.44 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 35° 36' 32" WEST FOR A
DISTANCE OF 105.69 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 13° 46' 22" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 138.15
FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 37° 39 32" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 206.53 FEET; THENCE RUN
NORTH 64° 22' 09" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 90.23 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 15° 32' 43"
‘WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 158.95 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 29° 19' 04" WEST FOR A
DISTANCE OF 68.91 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 14° 22' 57" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 102.14
FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 28° 42' 40" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 50.53 FEET TO A POINT ON
THE NORTHERLY LINE OF AFORESAID PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED IN DOCUMENT
NUMBER 20200355298; THENCE RUN SOUTH 61° 17' 20" EAST ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE
FOR A DISTANCE OF 1478.56 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTHERLY LINE RUN THE
FOLLOWING COURSES: SOUTH 13° 33' 45" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 94.14 FEET; THENCE
RUN SOUTH 35° 31' 19" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 48.41 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 07° 05
00" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 70.02 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 25° 26' 06" EAST FOR A
DISTANCE OF 148.37 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 46° 47' 56" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 56.18
FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 50° 28' 22" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 27.15 FEET; THENCE RUN
SOUTH 00° 13' 23" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 104.20 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89° 46' 37"
WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 530.13 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00° 13' 23" WEST FOR A
DISTANCE OF 138.00 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89° 46' 37" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 502.13
FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00° 13' 23" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 55.00 FEET: THENCE RUN
SOUTH 09° 58' 54" EAST FOR A DISTANCE. OF 660.01 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 69° 24" 06"
WEST A DISTANCE OF 65.97 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

22
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RESOLUTION 2021-17

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION 2021-14
DESIGNATING A DATE AND TIME FOR THE PUBLIC
HEARING ON THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-
2022 AND LEVY OF OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE
ASSESSMENTS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the Storey Park Community Development District’s (“District”) Board of
Supervisors (“Board”) previously adopted Resolution 2021-14 designating the date, time and
location for the public hearing on the District’s Budget for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 and to levy
operations and maintenance assessments; and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to designate a new time and location for the public
hearing.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE STOREY PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT:

1. The time and date of the District’s public hearing on the Budget for Fiscal Year
2021-2022 and levy of operations and maintenance assessments are changed to the following:
July 22, 2021 at p.m. at the Rosen Plaza Hotel, 9700 International Drive, Orlando, FL
32819.

2. The District Manager shall use the above time, date and location in providing
notices required by Florida law.

3. Except as amended herein, Resolution 2021-14 shall remain unchanged and in full
force and effect.

4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 24" DAY OF JUNE, 2021.
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE

STOREY PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

By:

Chairman/Vice-Chairman
ATTEST:

By:

Secretary/Asst. Secretary
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STOREY PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2019
(ASSESSMENT AREA THREE PROJECT)

(Acquisition and Construction)

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of the Storey Park Community Development
District (the “District”) hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture between the District and Regions Bank, as
trustee (the “Trustee”), dated as of August 1, 2015, as supplemented by that certain Third
Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of May 1, 2019 (collectively, the “Indenture™) (all
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture):

A)
®)
©

D)
B)

®

Requisition Number: 4

Identify Acquisition Agreement, if applicable;
Name of Payee pursnant to Acquisition Agreement:
Fausnight Stripe & Line Inc.

Amount Payable: $9,386.00

Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due
and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments): Invoice #32470
— Qty.52 No Parking 12” x 18" Signs

Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement to be made:

Series 2019 Acquisition and Construction Account of the Acquisition
and Construction Fund.

The undersigned hereby certifies that:

L.
2.

obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by the District,

each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the Series 2019
Acquisition and Construction Account;

each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the Cost of the
Assessment Area Thre Project; and

each disbursement represents a cost of Assessment Area Three Project which has
not previously been paid.



The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon the
District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to receive
payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been released
or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof,

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate

entitled to retain.

Originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or the services rendered with
respect to which disbursement is hereby requested are on file with the District.

STOREY PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

By: (L—\ _\_r\-—-"’

Responsible Officer

Date: '5'“’?[2—‘

CONSULTING ENGINEER’S APPROVAL FOR
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for the Cost of the
Assessment Area Three Project and is consistent with: (i) the Acquisition Agreement; and (ii) the
report of the Consulting Engineer, as such report shall have been amended or modified.

Digitally signed by Christina M Baxter
BN¢ CN=Christina M

C h ri Sti na M B ax'te r &%ﬂtﬁ%todgmnmmmmcmmﬁsm,

Date: 2021.05.20 16:42:02-04'00"

Consulting Engineer



Fausnight
STPE S INET, Invoice
910 CHARLES ST
DATE INVOICE NO.
LONGWOOD, FL
32750-5410 5/16/2021 32470
BiLL TO PROJECT
Storey Park CDD Storey Park Parcel L Phase 3
EMail: tviscarra@gmscil.com Storey Park Blvd
¢/0 GMS Cent FL - Teresa Viscarra City of Orlando
1408 Hamlin Ave, Unit E
St. Cloud, FL 34771
P.O. NO. TERMS REP SHIP DATE CUSTOMER JOB # PROJECT
Net 30 BRC 5/12/2021 21-0361 Parcel L ...
ITEM DESCRIPTION Qry um UNIT RATE AMOUNT
Signs NO PARKING Signs 12"x18" 52 EA 190.00|  9,880.00
Signs 3% Discount 1] -494.00 -494.00
Sales Tax (7.0%) $0.00
Phone # Fax # Total $9,386.00
407-261-5446 407-261-5449







STOREY PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2019
(ASSESSMENT AREA THREE PROJECT)

(Acquisition and Construction)

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of the Storey Park Community Development
District (the “District”) hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture between the District and Regions Bank, as
trustee (the “Trustee”), dated as of August 1, 2015, as supplemented by that certain Third
Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of May 1, 2019 (collectively, the “Indenture”) (all
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture):

(A)
(B)
©

(D)
(E)

(F)

Requisition Number: §

Identify Acquisition Agreement, if applicable;
Name of Payee pursuant to Acquisition Agreement:
Fausnight Stripe & Line Inc.

Amount Payable: $849.00

Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due
and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments): Invoice #32574
— Qty.4 No Parking in Alley Double Arrow Signs & Qty.12 Paint Arrows in
Alleys

Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement to be made:

Series 2019 Acquisition and Construction Account of the Acquisition
and Construction Fund.

The undersigned hereby certifies that:

L.
2.

obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by the District,

each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the Series 2019
Acquisition and Construction Account;

cach disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the Cost of the
Assessment Area Three Project; and

each disbursement represents a cost of Assessment Area Three Project which has
not previously been paid.



The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon the
District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to receive
payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been released
or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof.

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item representing
payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of such certificate

entitled to retain.

Originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired or the services rendered with
respect to which disbursement is hereby requested are on file with the District.

STOREY PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

By:

Responsible Officer

Date:

CONSULTING ENGINEER’S APPROVAL FOR
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for the Cost of the
Assessment Area Three Project and is consistent with: (i) the Acquisition Agreement; and (ii) the
report of the Consulting Engineer, as such report shall have been amended or modified.

Consulting Engineer



_Fausnight

STRIPE & LINE INC. I nvo I ce
910 CHARLES ST
DATE INVOICE NO.
LONGWOOD, FL
32750-5410 6/9/2021 32574
BILL TO PROJECT
Storey Park CDD Storey Park Parcel L Phase 3
EMail: tviscarra@gmscfl.com Storey Park Blvd
c/o GMS Cent FL - Teresa Viscarra City of Orlando
1408 Hamlin Ave, Unit E
St. Cloud, FL 34771
P.O. NO. TERMS REP SHIP DATE CUSTOMER JOB # PROJECT
Net 30 BPP 6/8/2021 21-0361 Parcel L ...
ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY um UNIT RATE AMOUNT
Signs No Parking In Alley (double arrow) Signs 4 EA 1 LS 849.00 849.00
Paint Arrows in Alleys 12 EA
Sales Tax (7.0%) $0.00
Phone # Fax # TOtaI $849.00

407-261-5446 407-261-5449




From: Tricia Adams tadams@gmscfl.com
Subject: Re: Reunion West Draft Minutes - May 2021 Meeting
Date: June 10, 2021 at 8:43 AM

To: Graham Staley. gdstaley@gmail.com
Cc: Vanderbilt, Stacie svanderbilt@gmscfl.com

Received - thank you.
Tricia L. Adams

District Manager

Governmental Management Services
219 E. Livingston Street

Orlando, FL 32801

Office  407.841.5524 ext 138
Cell 863.241.8050

“It is not the mountain we conquer but ourselves.”
—Edmund Hillary

On Jun 10, 2021, at 8:26 AM, Graham Staley. <gdstaley @gmail.com> wrote;

Here are my requests for changes to the draft May 2021 Minutes to save time at the meeting
today

Page 5 — halfway down the page: Reference to CENTOS apartments. It should be SENTOSA
Page 6 — halfway down the page: NICOLAS should be NICKLAUS

Page 8 — halfway down the page: RNM should be R&M

Page 10 — halfway down the page: EXPOSTULATE should be EXTRAPOLATE

Page 12 — middle of the page: AIRTIMES should be ARTEMIS. There are two occurrences of this
error.

Page 15 —top of page: This reads “Mr. Staley: Is it possible within the laws that we have to allow
the Chairman of the POA to say why they want the installation to be held off?”. It should read
“Mr. Staley: Is it possible within the laws that we can allow the Chairman of the POA to say why
they want the installation to be held off?

Page 22 — top of page: INCITIVE should be INITIATIVE

Graham
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TEMPORARY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN THE STOREY PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT AND AARON AND JOY HUMPHREY

This Temporary Access Easement Agreement (“Easement Agreement”) is made and entered
into this 28th day of May, 2021, by and between:

Storey Park Community Development District, a local unit of special-purpose
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being situated
in the City of Orlando, Florida, and whose mailing address is ¢/o Governmental
Management Services — Central Florida, 219 East Livingston Street, Orlando,
Florida 32801 (the “District™); and

Aaron and Joy Humphrey, whose mailing address is 11956 Ampersand Drive, Orlando,
Florida 32832 (the “Homeowners”).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the District was established pursuant to the Uniform Community
Development District Act of 1980, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended (the “Act”), by
Ordinance No. 2015-7 of the Orlando City Council (the “Ordinance”) and is validly existing under
the Constitution and laws of the State of Florida; and

WHEREAS, the District is the owner of certain lands in Orange County, Florida more
particularly described as TRACT OS-L9, of STOREY PARK - PARCEL L PHASE 2, according
to the Plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 97, at Page 13, of the Public Records of Orange
County, Florida, (Orange County Parcel ID: 03-24-31-8977-15-129) (the “District’s Property™);
and

WHEREAS, Homeowners are the owners of property within the District having the
address of 11956 Ampersand Drive, Orlando, Florida 32832, with a legal description of Lot 153,
of STOREY PARK — PARCEL L PHASE 2, according to the Plat thereof, as recorded in Plat
Book 97, at Page 13, of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida (Orange County Parcel ID:
03-24-31-8977-01-530) (the “Homeowners’ Property”); and

WHEREAS, Homeowners have requested that the District grant to them a temporary,
nonexclusive easement over a portion of the District’s Property for the purpose of gaining access
to Homeowners’ Property for the construction of a swimming pool in the rear yard at Homeowners®
Property, and the District is agreeable to granting such an easement on the terms and conditions
set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the portion of District’s Property over which the temporary easement (the
“Easement Property”) is requested is shown on Exhibit “A.” attached hereto and made a part
hereof.

Temporary Access Easement Agreement
Storey Park Community Development District and Aaron and Joy Humphrey



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of Ten and 00/100 Dollars ($10.00)
and other good and valuable consideration and the mutual covenants of the parties, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. RECITALS. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and by this reference are
incorporated as a material part of this Easement Agreement.

2, GRANT OF EASEMENT. The District hereby grants to Homeowners a
temporary, non-exclusive easement over, upon, under, through, and across the Easement Property
for the sole purpose of Homeowners (and its contractors) gaining access to their lot for the purpose
of construction of a swimming pool in the rear yard at Homeowners’ Property (the “Easement”).
Homeowner agrees that the Easement will only be used for access to the rear portion of their
property for construction of a swimming pool and related repair of the Easement Property. No
dump trucks, pickups or other vehicles will be parked or left overnight on the Easement Property.
No materials shall be placed or stored on the Easement Property. The Homeowners agree and
acknowledge that, while the District grants access across the Easement Property, as depicted on
Exhibit A, the District makes no representations or warranties of any kind that Homeowner has
authority to access road right of way or that the Easement Property is suitable for vehicular, or any
other, use; the Homeowners’ use of the Easement Property is solely at its own risk. Homeowners
shall be responsible for securing all required HOA approvals, utility approvals, if any, and permits
from the City of Orlando or any other governmental entity or agency having jurisdiction thereof
in connection with the excavation and construction of the swimming pool and any related
improvements in the rear yard of Homeowners® Property. Nothing herein shall be interpreted or
construed to grant any easement or other rights, temporary or otherwise, over any property other
than the Easement Property.

3. TERM. Homeowners shall be permitted to use the Easement until the earlier of
the completion of the excavation and construction of the swimming pool in the rear yard at
Homeowner’s Property or ninety (90) days from the date of this Easement Agreement, at which
time the Easement shall automatically terminate.

4. INDEMNIFICATION.

a. Homeowners agree to indemnify and hold the District (which shall, for the purpose
of this section include the District’s agents, employees, contractors, managers, etc.) harmless from
and against any and all damages, losses or claims, including but not limited to legal fees and
expenses, to the extent that such damages, losses or claims are attributable to actions, omissions
or negligence in the use of the Easement Property (or any adjacent or neighboring property) by
Homeowners, their employees, agents, assignees, and/or contractors (or their subcontractors,
employees, materialmen or independent contractors).

b. Homeowners agree that nothing contained in this Easement Agreement shall
constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District’s limitations on liability set forth in Section
768.28, Florida Statutes, and other law.

Temporary Access Easement Agreement
Storey Park Community Development District and Aaron and Joy Humphrey



5. DAMAGE. In the event that Homeowners, their respective employees, agents,
assignees and/ or contractors (or their subcontractors, employees, materialmen or independent
contractors) cause damage to the Easement Property or any of the improvements located within
the Easement Property or causes damage to the District’s other property or any improvements
located thereon, in the exercise of the easement rights granted herein, Homeowners, at
Homeowners’ sole cost and expense, agree to commence and diligently pursue the restoration of
the same and the improvements so damaged to as nearly as practical to the original condition and
grade, including, without limitation, repair and replacement of any landscaping, hardscaping,
plantings, ground cover, irrigation systems, roadways, driveways, sidewalks, parking areas,
fences, walks, utility lines, stormwater facilities, pumping facilities, pumps and other structures,
within thirty (30) days after receiving written notice of the occurrence of any such damage. The
Homeowners shall allow no lien to attach to the Easement Property or any improvements located
on said property or District’s other property arising out of work performed by, for, or on behalf of
Homeowners. In the event the Homeowners do not fully repair damages under this Easement
Agreement within the thirty (30) day period specified herein, the Homeowners hereby consent to
the District repairing such damage at the sole cost of the Homeowners, including fees for
administration, interest charges, as applicable; such costs may be made a lien on the Homeowner’s
Property enforceable by the District.

6. INSURANCE. The Homeowners agree that they have current property and
liability insurance and they shall insure all contractors retained for construction of the swimming
pool and related work are insured and licensed, as applicable.

7. DEFAULT. A default by any party under this Easement Agreement shall entitle
any other to all remedies available at law or in equity, which may include but not be limited to the
right of actual damages, injunctive relief and/or specific performance.

8. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT. In the event that either the District or
Homeowners seek to enforce this Easement Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then
the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable
attorneys' fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution or appellate proceedings.

9, NOTICES. Any notice, demand, consent, authorization, request, approval or other
communication that any party is required, or may desire, to give to or make upon the other party
pursuant to this Easement Agreement shall be effective and valid only if in writing, signed by the
party giving notice and delivered personally to the other parties or sent by express 24-hour
guaranteed courier or delivery service or by certified mail of the United States Postal Service,
postage prepaid and return receipt requested, addressed to the other party as follows (or to such
other place as any party may by notice to the others specify):

To Homeowners: Aaron and Joy Humphrey
11956 Ampersand Dr.
Orlando, Florida 32832

Temporary Access Easement Agreement
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To the District: Storey Park Community Development District
c/o Governmental Management Services — Central
Florida, LLC
219 E. Livingston Street
Orlando, Florida 32801
Attention: District Manager

With a copy to: Latham, Luna, Eden & Beaudine, LLP
201 S. Orange Avenue, Suite 1400
Orlando, Florida 32801
Attention: Jan Albanese Carpenter, Esq.

Notice shall be deemed given when received, except that if delivery is not accepted, notice
shall be deemed given on the date of such non-acceptance. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at
the place of delivery) or on a non-business day shall be deemed received on the next business day.
If any time for giving notice would otherwise expire on a non-business day, the notice period shall
be extended to the next succeeding business day. Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays recognized
by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days. Counsel for the District
and counsel for Homeowner may deliver Notice on behalf of the District and Homeowner.

10.  THIRD PARTIES. This Easement Agreement is solely for the benefit of the
formal parties hereto, and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the
benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Easement Agreement. Nothing in this Easement
Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or
legal entity other than the parties hereto any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this
Easement Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions hereof. The District shall be solely
responsible for enforcing its rights under this Easement Agreement against any interfering third
party. Nothing contained in this Easement Agreement shall limit or impair the District’s right to
protect their rights from interference by a third party.

11.  ASSIGNMENT. No party may assign, transfer or license all or any portion of its
rights under this Easement Agreement without the prior written consent of the other parties.

12.  CONTROLLING LAW. This Easement Agreement shall be construed.
interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida.

13. PUBLIC RECORDS. Homeowners understand and agree that all documents of
any kind provided to the District or to District Staff in connection with this Easement Agreement
are public records and are to be treated as such in accordance with Florida law.

14. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more
provisions of this Easement Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the
remaining portions of this Easement Agreement, or any part of this Easement Agreement not held
to be invalid or unenforceable.

Temporary Access Easement Agreement
Storey Park Community Development District and Aaron and Joy Humphrey



15.  BINDING EFFECT. This Easement Agreement and all of the provisions,
representations, covenants, and conditions contained herein shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

16. AUTHORIZATION. By execution below, the undersigned represent that they
have been duly authorized by the appropriate body or official of their respective entity to execute
this Easement Agreement, and that each party has complied with all the requirements of law and
has full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this instrument.

17. AMENDMENTS. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this
Easement Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by all
parties hereto.

18.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This instrument shall constitute the final and complete
expression of the agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of this Easement
Agreement.

[Signatures Provided on Following Page.]

Temporary Access Easement Agreement
Storey Park Community Development District and Aaron and Joy Humphrey



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this instrument to be executed by
their duly authorized officers effective as of the day and year first above written.

STOREY PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

\ Mﬂ&ﬁ L/v/é[ { L—
Tricia L. Adams
District Manager

F—t
Date: June / v ,2021

ERS:

HOME

Aaron Humphr v
Date: ST 29/

s
{umphre
IJDOY g y_/;%/At

Temporary Access Easement Agresment
Storey Park Comnmnity Development District and Aaron and Joy Humphrey



EXHIBIT “A”
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Fausnight

STRIPE & LINE INC.

PROPOSAL Page 1 of 1

910 Charles Street j HONE FAX DATE 05/27/21
Longwood, FL 32750 PROPOSAL # 21-0537
407) 261-5446 * Fax (407) 261-5449 — -
(407) (407) JOB NAME/LOCATION
TO Storey Park CDD Storey Park Parcel L. Phase 2
c/o GMS Storey Park Bivd
City of Orlando
Attention: Alan Scheerer I
ascheerer@gmscfl.com
We hereby submit specifications and estimates for:
ltem Description Quantity U/M Unit Price Amount
NO PARKING Signs 12"x18" 45 EA $ 195.00 $ 8,775.00
Breakdown:
No Arrow 11 EA
Double Arrow 16 EA
Right Arrow 9 EA
Left Arrow 9 EA
Paint Curb Yellow with NO PARKING stencil 1 LS § 200.00 $ 200.00
20 LF
All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed in a workmanlike manner accord- Total: $ 8,975.00
ing to standard practices. Any alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs Terms: Net 30
will be executed only upon written orders, and will becoms an extra charge over and above the estimate, Authorized Phil Fausn ight Proposal Valid for
All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents or delays beyond our control. Signatu re 90 Days

Payment will be made as outlined above.

Acceptance of P roposal The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and hereby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as specified.

Date of Acceptance Signature
CONTACTS: Estimating Department estimating@fausnight.com
Phil Fausnight, President/Contracts Administrator phil@fausnight.com
John Bruce, Project Coordinator/Scheduling john.bruce@fausnight.com
Cris Mercedes, Gen Admin, Insurance, Submittals cris@fausnight.com

File: 21-0537 Storey Park CDD - Parcel L Ph 2 - GMS
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Storey Park

Community Development District

Summary of Checks

April 16, 2021 to June 17, 2021

Bank Date Check # Amount |
General Fund 4/22/21 651 S 72,796.98
4/28/21 652-654 S 19,660.08
4/30/21 655 S 1,120.00
5/6/21 656-657 S 1,473.19
5/11/21 658 S 5,324.83
5/13/21 659-660 S 7,880.00
5/19/21 661-663 S 30,147.13
5/24/21 664-666 S 8,788.05
5/26/21 667-670 S 16,006.00
6/2/21 671 S 697.00
6/8/21 672 S 5,310.19
6/9/21 673-675 S 6,081.91
6/16/21 676-677 S 27,756.18
S 203,041.54

Payroll April 2021

Andrew Ashby 50007 S 184.70
Patrick Bonin Jr. 50008 S 184.70
S 369.40

$ 203,410.94 |
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SECTION 2



Storey Park

Community Development District

Unaudited Financial Reporting
May 31, 2021
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ASSETS:
CASH
DUE FROM DEVELOPER
SERIES 2015

RESERVE

REVENUE

INTEREST

SINKING FUND

GENERAL REDEMPTION
SERIES 2018

RESERVE

REVENUE

INTEREST

GENERAL REDEMPTION
SERIES 2019

RESERVE

REVENUE

INTEREST

SINKING FUND

CONSTRUCTION

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

FUND EQUITY:

FUND BALANCES:
RESTRICTED FOR DEBT SERVICE 2015
RESTRICTED FOR DEBT SERVICE 2018
RESTRICTED FOR DEBT SERVICE 2019
RESTRICTED FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS 2015
RESTRICTED FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS 2019
UNASSIGNED

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND EQUITY

Storey Park
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET

May 31, 2021
General Debt Service Capital Projects Totals
Fund Fund Fund 2021

$166,568 $166,568
$100 $100
$308,612 $308,612
$409,449 $409,449
51 $1
$1 - S1
83,247 $3,247
$64,475 $64,475
$251,690 $251,690
$0 $0
$63 $63
$121,480 $121,480
$241,040 $241,040
$6,824 $6,824
$0
$850 $850
$166,668 $1,406,882 $850 $1,574,399
$4,957 $4,957
$721,309 $721,309
$3165,228 $316,228
$369,344 $369,344
$0 50
$850 $850
$161,712 $161,712
$166,668 51,406,882 $850 $1,574,399




REVENUES:

ASSESSMENTS - TAXROLL
DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS
INTEREST

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE:
SUPERVISORFEES

FICA EXPENSE

ENGINEERING

ATTORNEY

ARBITRAGE

DISSEMINATION AGENT
ANNUALAUDIT

TRUSTEE FEES

ASSESSMENT ADMINISTRATION
MANAGEMENT FEES
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
TELEPHONE

POSTAGE

INSURANCE

PRINTING & BINDING

LEGAL ADVERTISING

OTHER CURRENT CHARGES
PROPERTY APPRAISER
OFFICE SUPPUES

DUES, UICENSE & SUBSCRITIONS

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
CONTRACT SERVICES

FIELD MANAGEMENT

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE - CONTRACT
LAKE MAINTENANCE

MITIGATION MONITORING & MAINTENANCE

REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
REPAIRS - GENERAL
OPERATING SUPPLIES
LANDSCAPE CONTINGENCY
IRRIGATION REPAIRS
ROADWAYS & SIDEWALKS
TRAIL MAINTENANCE

DOG PARK MAINTENANCE
SIGNAGE

UTIITY
ELECTRIC
STREETLIGHTS
WATER & SEWER

OTHER
PROPERTY INSURANCE

TOTALEXPENDITURES
EXCESS REVENUES {(EXPENDITURES}

FUND BALANCE - Beginning

FUND BALANCE - Ending

Storey Park
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
For The Period Ending May 31,2021

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU5/31/21 THRU 5/31/21 VARIANCE

$593,470 $580,278 $580,278 $0
$179,368 $119,579 $36,600 ($82,979)
$0 50 $18 $18
$772,838 $699,857 $616,897 ($82,960)
$12,000 58,000 31,800 $6,200
5918 $612 6138 $474
$12,000 48,000 $3,256 $4,744
$25,000 $16,667 $22,432 ($5,765)
$600 $0 $0 50
$10,500 $7,000 $7,000 $0
$6,200 $6,200 $6,200 $0
$10,500 $10,500 $17,500 ($7,000)
$5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $0
$36,050 $24,033 $24,034 (1)
$1,200 $800 $800 $0
3300 $200 $0 $200
$500 $333 $1,483 {31,150}
$6,100 $6,100 85,810 $290
$1,000 $667 $230 $437
51,925 $1,283 $6,107 ($4,824)
$500 $333 $0 $333
$950 $950 $1,140 {$190)
$400 $267 $3 5264
$175 $175 $175 $0
$15,450 $10,300 $10,300 $0
$335,000 $223,333 $216,025 $7,308
$17,820 $11,880 $4,360 $7,520
$13,750 $10,400 $10,400 $0
$5,000 43,333 $2,952 $382
$5,000 $3,333 $0 $3,333
$10,000 $6,667 53,153 $3,514
$20,000 $13,333 $11,821 51,512
$10,000 $6,667 $8,625 ($1,958)
$2,500 $1,667 $117 $1,550
$2,500 $1,667 32,488 ($821)
$5,000 $3,333 $19,039 ($15,706)
$3,000 $2,000 $623 31,377
$160,000 $106,667 $123,327 {$16,660)
$30,000 $20,000 $10,267 $9,733
$6,000 $6,000 $4,405 $1,595
$772,838 $527,700 $531,010 ($3,310)

$0 $85,886

$0 $75,825

S0 $161,712




REVENUES:
ASSESSMENTS - TAXROLL
INTEREST

TRANSFERIN

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
INTEREST - 11/1
PRINCIPAL - 11/1
INTEREST - 5/1

TOTALEXPENDITURES

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES)

FUND BALANCE - Beginning

FUND BALANCE - Ending

Storey Park
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

DEBT SERVICE FUND
Series 2015
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
For The Period Ending May 31, 2021

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 5/31/21 THRU5/31/21 VARIANCE

$616,298 $603,253 $603,253 $0

$500 $333 $44 ($290)

$0 S0 $3,247 $3,247

$616,798 $603,587 $606,544 $2,957

$214,859 $214,859 $214,859 $0

$175,000 $175,000 $175,000 50

$211,359 $211,359 $211,359 50

$601,218 $601,219 $601,219 $0
$15,580 $5,325
$401,268 $715,984
$416,848 $721,309




REVENUES:

ASSESSMENTS - TAX ROLL
INTEREST

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES:
INTEREST - 12/15
PRINCIPAL - 6/15
INTEREST - 6/15
TOTALEXPENDITURES

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES)

FUND BALANCE - Beginning

FUND BALANCE - Ending

Storey Park
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

DEBT SERVICE FUND
Series 2018
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
For The Period Ending May 31, 2021

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU5/31/21 THRU 5/31/21 VARIANCE
$248,827 $242,678 $242,678 $0
$250 $167 $14 {$153)
$249,077 $242,845 $242,692 (3153)
$90,072 $90,072 $90,072 50
$65,000 $0 $0 $0
$90,072 $0 $0 $0
$245,144 $90,072 $90,072 $0
$3,933 $152,620
$98,730 $163,608
$102,663 $316,228




REVENUES:
ASSESSMENTS - TAXROLL
INTEREST

TRANSFERIN

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
INTEREST - 12/15
PRINCIPAL - 6/15
INTEREST - 6/15

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES)

FUND BALANCE - Beginning

FUND BALANCE - Ending

Storey Park
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

DEBT SERVICE FUND
Series 2019
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
For The Period Ending May 31, 2021

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 5/31/21 THRU 5/31/21 VARIANCE
$238,964 $233,617 $233,617 $0
$500 $333 $17 {$316)
S0 $0 $6,824 $6,824
$239,464 $233,951 $240,459 $6,508
$82,294 $82,294 $82,294 50
$75,000 $0 $0 $0
$82,294 $0 $0 $0
$239,588 $82,294 $82,294 $0
($124) $158,165
$98,623 $211,179
$98,499 $369,344




REVENUES:

INTEREST

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

CAPITAL OUTLAY
TRANSFEROQUT

TOTALEXPENDITURES

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES)

FUND BALANCE - Beginning

FUND BALANCE - Ending

Storey Park
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Series 2015

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
For The Period Ending May 31, 2021

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 5/31/21 THRU 5/31/21 VARIANCE
50 $0 $0 $0
S0 50 $0 S0
$0 $0 $3,500 ($3,500)
$0 $0 $3,247 ($3,247)
S0 50 $6,747 ($6,747)
S0 (56,747)
50 $6,747
$0 $0




REVENUES:

INTEREST

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

CAPITAL OUTLAY - CONSTRUCTION
TRANSFER OUT

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES)

FUND BALANCE - Beginning

FUND BALANCE - Ending

Storey Park

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Series 2019

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
For The Period Ending May 31,2021

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 5/31/21 THRU 5/31/21 VARIANCE

$0 $0 $1 $1
$0 $0 $1 51
$0 $0 $12,886 ($12,886)
$0 $0 $6,824 ($6,824)
$0 50 $19,710 {$19,710)
$0 {$19,709)

$0 $20,559

50 $850
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STOREY PARK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
LONG TERM DEBT REPORT

SERIES 2015, SPECIAL ASSESSMIENT BONDS
(ASSESSMENT AREA ONE PROJECT)

INTEREST RATES: 4.000%, 4.500%, 5.000%, 5.125%
MATURITY DATE: 11/1/2045
RESERVE FUND DEFINITION 50% OF MAXIMUM ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE
RESERVE FUND REQUIREMENT $303,522
RESERVE FUND BALANCE $308,612
BONDS OUTSTANDING - 9/30/15 $9,210,000
LESS: PRINCIPAL PAYMENT 11/1/16 (590,000)
LESS: PRINCIPAL PAYMENT 11/1/17 ($155,000)
LESS: PRINCIPAL PAYMENT 11/1/18 ($160,000)
LESS: PRINCIPAL PAYMENT 11/1/19 ($170,000)
LESS: PRINCIPAL PAYMENT 11/1/20 ($175,000)
CURRENT BONDS OUTSTANDING $8,460,000

SERIES 2018, SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS

(ASSESSMENT AREA TWO PROJECT)

INTEREST RATES: 3.750%, 4.375%, 4.875%, 5.000%
MATURITY DATE: 6/15/2048
RESERVE FUND DEFINITION 25% OF MAXIMUM ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE
RESERVE FUND REQUIREMENT $62,200
RESERVE FUND BALANCE $64,475
BONDS OUTSTANDING - 5/22/18 $3,865,000
LESS: PRINCIPAL PAYMENT 6/15/19 ($65,000)
LESS: PRINCIPAL PAYMENT 6/15/20 {$65,000)
CURRENT BONDS OUTSTANDING $3,735,000

SERIES 2019, SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS

(ASSESSMENT AREA THREE PROJECT)

INTEREST RATES: 3.500%, 3.750%, 4.250%, 4.400%
MATURITY DATE: 6/15/2049
RESERVE FUND DEFINITION 50% OF MAXIMUM ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE
RESERVE FUND REQUIREMENT $119,695
RESERVE FUND BALANCE $121,480
BONDS OUTSTANDING - 5/31/19 $3,995,000
LESS: PRINCIPAL PAYMENT 6/15/20 (570,000}
CURRENT BONDS OUTSTANDING $3,925,000
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Storey Park
Community Development District

Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2015
(Assessment Area One Project)

Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisitions
Fiscal Year 2021
12/16/20 8 Governmental Management Services-CF FY2021 Construction Accounting S 3,500.00
TOTAL $ 3,500.00

Fiscal Year 2021

10/1/20 Interest S 0.06
11/2/20 Interest $ 0.06
12/1/20 Interest S 0.06
1/4/21 Interest S 0.04
2/1/21 Interest S 0.03
3/1/21 Interest $ 0.02
3/19/21 Transfer to General Redemption $ (3,246.78)
TOTAL $ (3,246.51)

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/20 S 6,746.51

Interest Earned thru 3/31/21 $ (3,246.51)

Requisitions Paid thru 3/31/21 $ {3,500.00)

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund $ -
—
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Storey Park
Community Development District

Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2019
{Assessment Area Three Project)

Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisitions
Fiscal Year 2021
12/16/20 3 Governmental Management Services-CF FY2021 Construction Accounting s 3,500.00
5/21/21 4 Fausnight Stripe & Line Invi# 32470 - Qty.52 No Parking 12" x 18" Signs $ 9,386.00
TOTAL $ 12,886.00
Fiscal Year 2021
10/1/20 Interest S 0.11
11/2/20 Interest S 0.12
12/1/20 Interest S 0.11
1/4/21 Interest S 0.10
2/1/21 Interest $ 0.09
3/1/21 Interest S 0.08
4/1/21 Interest S 0.09
5/1/21 Interest S 0.08
TOTAL $ 0.78
Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/20 $ 13,734.73
Interest Earned thru 5/31/21 $ 0.78
Requisitions Paid thru 5/31/21 $  (12,886.00)
Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund $ 849.51
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